
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

8 July 2022 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee on 
Monday, 18th July, 2022 at 6.30 pm 

in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston PE21 8QR 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Peter Watson 
Vice Chairman: Councillor George Cornah 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Richard Austin BEM, David Brown, 

Katie Chalmers, Anton Dani, Paul Goodale, Martin Howard, 
Frank Pickett, Stephen Woodliffe and Mr Alan Pickering 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

Public Document Pack



D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Wednesday 13th July 2022. 
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   Risk Management Report (Pages 5 - 18) 
 

 (A report by Suzanne Rolfe, Insights & Transformation Manager) 
 

2   Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/22 (Pages 19 - 44) 
 

 (A report by Matthew Waller, Audit Manager)  
 

3   Auditor's Annual Report (Pages 45 - 64) 
 

 (A report by Mazars)  
 

4   Audit Strategy Memorandum (Pages 65 - 98) 
 

 (A report by Mazars)  
 

5   Treasury Management (Pages 99 - 122) 
 

 (A report by Sean Howsam, Interim Tresury Manager)  
 
 

6   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 123 - 126) 
 

 (For Members to consider the Committee’s work programme.) 
 

 
 

 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Pippa Rose, 
Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, 01205 314228    email: 
pippa.rose@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify 01205 314228    
email: pippa.rose@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

 



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

28 March 2022 

Present: Councillor Peter Watson (Chairman), Councillor George Cornah (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Tom Ashton, Richard Austin BEM, Anton Dani, Paul Goodale, 
Stephen Woodliffe and Mr Alan Pickering 
 
In attendance: Councillor Jonathan Noble, Portfolio Holder for Finance 
 
Officers –  
Assistant Director - Finance (Deputy S151 Officer), Deputy Chief Finance Officer 
(Corporate), Monitoring Officer and Matthew Waller 
 
27   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed by the Committee and signed by the 
Chairman. 
 
28   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies of absence were received by Councillors; Katie Chalmers, Martin Howard and 
Frank Pickett. 
 
29   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
30   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
31   EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 

 
Mark Surridge, Director – Public and Social Sector, Mazars, presented a report, which 
provided an update on progress in Mazars’ delivery of their responsibilities as the 
Council’s External Auditor.  
 
During the presentation, Mr Surridge informed the Committee that this had been a 
difficult audit and setbacks had occurred throughout the process, including; 

• As a result of the review of the accounting for Business rates within the Financial 
Statements, it was agreed that no adjustments would be made and Mazars were 
happy with the reasoning as to why there would be no adjustment.  

•  The Council had undertaken the incorrect accounting treatment to some aspects 
of Covid Grants, in assuming that the Council was to decide whether the 
applicant was eligible for the grants.  

• An error dating back several years regarding a capital accounting adjustment had 
been identified which took Officers a significant amount of time to amend, 
including the impact on prior years balances.  

 
In response to Members concerns the Assistant Director, Finance assured the 
Committee that an action Plan and Timetable had been drafted for future years to 
prevent this from happening again. 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Audit & Governance Committee 
28 March 2022 
 

 
32   ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2021/22 

 
The Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate) – PSPS Ltd presented the Accounting 
Policies 2021/22 to the Committee.  
 
The report explained that the Accounting Policies form Note 1 within the Financial 
Statements, and are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices 
applied by an authority in preparing and presenting Financial Statements.  
 
Application of these accounting policies provided information that was relevant to the 
decision making needs of the users of the Financial Statements, and reliance in 
presenting a true and fair view of the financial position of the authority. Some 
presentational changes had been made to ensure compliance with CIPFA’s Code of 
Practice, and a new accounting policy had been added in relation to joint operation. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Accounting Policies for 2021/22 set out at Appendix A be 
agreed. 
 
33   STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21 

 
The Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate) – PSPS Ltd presented the audited 
Financial Statements 2020/21 to the Committee. The Financial Statements were 
required to be approved by the Committee and the Section 151 Officer prior to 
publishing on the Council’s website, as per the Accounts and Audit Regulations.  
 
The Deputy Chief Finance Officer requested that the recommendations be changed to 
exclude the “non material” adjustments, as it had been confirmed that the adjustments 
required were material. The Committee agreed the changes.  
 
RESOLVED: It is recommended that Audit and Governance Committee:  

• Approve the Financial Statements 2020/21 and Annual Governance 
Statement for publication (Appendix A) be approved if no adjustments are 
required as a result of the ongoing audit by Mazars, and that the Chairman 
of the Committee and the Section 151 officer sign the letter of 
Representation (Appendix B).  

Approves that if adjustments to the Financial Statements 2020/21 are required as 
a result of the audit by Mazars then delegated authority be granted to the Section 
151 officer in consultation with the Chairman of the Committee to sign the revised 
statements. 
 
34   TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE 2021/22 

 
The Deputy Chief Finance Officer presented the Quarter 3 Treasury Management 
Update 2021/22 which was attached at Appendix A and included;  

• An economic update for the first three quarters of the 2021/22 financial year 

• The outlook for the remainder of the financial year together with interest rate 
forecasts  

• A review on the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy  

Page 2



Audit & Governance Committee 
28 March 2022 

 

• A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2021/22 

• A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2021/22  

• Debt rescheduling  

• Compliance with Treasury and Prudential indicators 
 
It was noted that the report referred to a key element of the Council’s Governance 
Framework and therefore represented an important contribution to the evidence trail in 
support of the Annual Governance Statement 2021/22. 
 
Members were reassured by both, the portfolio holder – finance and the Deputy Chief 
Finance Officer that the Council’s finances were secure following questions relating to 
the impact of inflation and the security of the financial institutions. 
 
35   INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022/23 

 
The Committee considered a report, which set out the Proposed Internal Audit Plan for 
2022/23. The plan detailed the activities to be audited and the indicative scope for each 
audit. The draft plan gave Members the opportunity to comment on the plan and the 
priorities that had been established.  
 
Members were concerned that the ICT Systems Security Joint Boston Borough Council 
and East Lyndsey District Council was classed as a Red for the Internal Audit Risk and 
Amber for the Assurance Map RAG Rating.  
 
Members asked if more staff were required to support the service. The Internal Audit 
Team Manager assured the Committee that the reviews indicted there was sufficient 
capacity.   
 
36   MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
The Monitoring Officer presented to the Committee the Local Government Association 
(LGA) Model Code of Conduct and associated guidance. The report stated that in 
accordance with section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011, every local authority was 
required to adopt a Code of Conduct, which would deal with ‘the conduct that was 
expected of members and co-opted members of the authority when acting in that 
capacity’. 
 
The current code of Conduct was adopted by the Council in July 2012. It was amended 
and re-affirmed in June 2013; and again in January 2019 following policies linked to the 
Code of Conduct, which made any breaches of those policies a breach of the Code of 
Conduct.  
 
A member of the Committee felt it was important that there was an addition to the Code 
which included readily available officer support for members who are being targeted 
through social media. The Monitoring officer recognised the importance of this issue to 
Members and assured the Committee that the Code of Conduct made reference to this 
as far as it was able to.  
 

Page 3



Audit & Governance Committee 
28 March 2022 
 

Following Member comments the Monitoring Officer assured members that; whilst the 
Code of Conduct would not apply to members of the public in attendance at meetings it 
did make reference to mutual respect.  
 
Members expressed their thanks to the LGA for developing the Model Code to provide 
the option of uniformity across all local authorities.  
 
RESOLVED:  
To recommend to Full Council that;  

1. That the Model Code of Conduct at Appendix A be adopted, without 
amendments, as this Council’s Code of Conduct (including those parts 
shown in square brackets and being relevant to the Cabinet model operated 
by this Council)  

2. That delegated authority be granted to the Monitoring Officer to make 
amendments to the Protocol on Member and Employee Relations as far as 
is necessary to ensure consistency with the Model Code of Conduct. 

That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to update the Council’s Constitution 
accordingly. 
 
37   MONITORING OFFICER UPDATE 

 
The Monitoring officer explained that his update was the Model Code of Conduct and 
that he had nothing further to add. 
 
38   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Members noted the work programme. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 8.06 pm 
 

Page 4



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 18 JULY 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT 

 

TO PROVIDE AN UPDATE ON RISK MANAGEMENT 

KEY DECISION: NO 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR NOBLE, PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR FINANCE 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

JOHN MEDLER, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – GOVERNANCE  

SUZANNE ROLFE, INSIGHTS & TRANSFORMATION MANAGER 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

This report provides an overview of risk management in the authority. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Committee considers and notes the report. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Audit and Governance Committee is responsible for overseeing the effectiveness of the 
Council’s risk management arrangements. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

N/A 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



1. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

1.1 The Audit & Governance Committee is responsible for monitoring the effective 

development and operation of risk management in the Council according to its terms of 

reference. 

1.2 A shared approach to risk management has been agreed across the Partnership with 

common formatting but not content. 

1.3 Individual strategic and operational risk registers are in place for each of the Councils to 

reflect individual circumstances, locality and reporting. Strategic risks are high level, relating 

to corporate priorities. Operational risks are service specific. 

1.4 In addition, a strategic risk register for the Partnership is under development for those risks 

which are common to all three Councils and where there is a synergy across all. 

1.5 A quarterly risk clinic is held with Assistant Directors to sit alongside the established 

performance clinic. 

 

2. STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER 
 
2.1 The strategic risk register has been reviewed against Boston’s Corporate Strategy: 

• Priority 1 – People Focused (Boston – Live, Work and Visit) 

• Priority 2 - Future Prosperity, Regeneration and Inclusive Growth 

• Priority 3 - Environmental Awareness and Accountability 

• Priority 4 - Delivering high quality services and maximising use of technology to support 

residents 

2.2 Workshops were held with members of the Audit & Governance Committee in January and 

March 2022. The resulting draft was then reviewed and signed off by Senior Leadership 

Team in May 2022. 

2.3 Summary of strategic risks (full details in Appendix A) 

Risk Context 

Economic 
hardship 

Risk to the delivery of Priority 1: People Focused 
Previous risks – housing, welfare, Brexit 

Health Risk to the delivery of Priority 1: People Focused 
Previous risk – health 

Local economy Risk to the delivery of Priority 2: Future Prosperity, Regeneration and 
Inclusive Growth 
Previous risks – growth and local economy, town centre, population 
change, Brexit 

Sustainability Risk to the delivery of Priority 3: Environmental Awareness and 
Accountability 

Environmental 
Crime 

Risk to the delivery of Priority 3: Environmental Awareness and 
Accountability 

Budget Risk to the delivery of Priority 4: Delivering high quality services and 
maximising use of technology to support residents 

Page 6



Risk Context 

Previous risk - budget 

Service delivery Risk to the delivery of Priority 4: Delivering high quality services and 
maximising use of technology to support residents 
Previous risk – capacity, Transformation Programme 

Civil contingency 
risks 

Risk to the delivery of Priority 4: Delivering high quality services and 
maximising use of technology to support residents 
Previous risk – civil contingency risks 

 

2.4 The previous strategic risk register has been cross-referenced against the new one to track 
the changes. 

Previous risk Outcome 

Flood risk The implementation of the Boston Barrier has changed the nature of the 
risk. The residual risk has moved to the civil contingency risks. 

Growth and local 
economy 

Local economy risk in the new risk register. 

Housing Economic hardship risk in the new risk register. 

Welfare The uncertainty around universal credit is no longer a risk. The residual 
risk has moved to the economic hardship risk in the new risk register. 

Health Health risk in the new risk register. 

Town Centre Local economy risk in the new risk register. 

Population change Local economy risk in the new risk register. 

Budget Budget risk in the new risk register. 

Capacity Service delivery risk in the new risk register. 

Transformation 
Programme 

Service delivery risk in the new risk register. 

Brexit No longer a live risk. Any residual risks have moved to economic hardship 
and local economy in the new risk register. 

Civil contingency 
risks 

Civil contingency risks in the new risk register. 

Compliance Service delivery risk in the new risk register. 

Reputation Service delivery risk in the new risk register. 

Strategic Alliance Service delivery risk in the new risk register. 

 

3. CONCLUSION 

3.1 The risk management arrangements are designed to provide the Council with a clearer and 
fuller understanding of the key risks facing the organisation and how these are being 
managed. They enable the Council to pro-actively manage its risks taking into account the 
agreed risk appetite level. 

 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

The Strategic Risk Register has been reviewed and updated to reflect the strategic risks faced by 

the organisation. Aligning the format and reporting process for risks across the three sovereign 

councils will ensure that risk management continues to be efficient and effective across the 

Partnership. The additional risk register for Partnership risks will ensure that these are monitored 

and managed appropriately where there is synergy across the three councils. 

Page 7



 
IMPLICATIONS 
 

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 

Introduction of a Partnership risk register in addition to sovereign council risk registers. 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

Effective risk management arrangements support all of the corporate priorities 

STAFFING 

None 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

DATA PROTECTION 

None 

FINANCIAL 

None 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Whole report 

STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

No consultation undertaken 

REPUTATION 

None 

CONTRACTS 

None 

CRIME AND DISORDER 

None 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

None 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

None 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

ACRONYMS 

None 
Page 8



 

APPENDICES 

None 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

This report has not been previously considered by a Council body. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Suzanne Rolfe, Insights & Transformation Manager 

suzanne.rolfe@boston.gov.uk  

Signed off by: John Medler, Assistant Director – Governance  

John.medler@e-lindsey.gov.uk   

Approved for publication: Councillor Noble, portfolio holder for Finance 

 

 

Page 9

mailto:suzanne.rolfe@boston.gov.uk
mailto:John.medler@e-lindsey.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A BBC strategic risk register

Likelihood Impact Overall risk

1.1

So
ci

al
/P

eo
pl

e

1:
 P

eo
pl

e

Economic hardship
A

D
: W

el
lb

ei
ng

 &
 C

om
m

un
ity

Le
ad

er
sh

ip

The risk of economic hardship to local
people

Increase in wholesale energy costs;
Supply chain issues;
Continuing impact of Covid-19;
High rents and low wages;
Housing supply, affordable housing and
standards issues;
Inflation;
Fuel shortages;
Ukraine conflict

Economic hardship;
Fuel poverty;
Poor housing;
Homelessness;
Isolation and lack of opportunities.

Taking action to improve housing
standards;
Working with local landlords;
Support to local people on budgeting,
training and jobs;
Political pressure on the government to
address fuel bills nationally.

Medium High Medium

1.2

So
ci

al
/P

eo
pl

e

1:
 P

eo
pl

e

Health

A
D

: L
ei

su
re

 &
Cu

ltu
re The risk of long term health issues on

local people; the opportunity to work
with health partners to address these

Long term health issues in the local
population;
Deprivation;
Local perceptions;
Apathy.

Poor health outcomes;
Increased costs to local health services;
Unsustainable health services.

The opportunity to work with health
partners to address long term health
issues and deprivation, to raise
awareness and promote good health, to
support the sustainability of local health
services

Medium Medium Medium

2.1

Ec
on

om
ic

2:
 P

ro
sp

er
ity

Local economy

A
D

: E
co

no
m

ic
 G

ro
w

th

Risk to local businesses, lack of growth,
lack of inward investment and tourism;
opportunity to encourage growth and
stimulate the local economy; good
community relations

Continuing impact of Covid-19 on
businesses and the local economy;
Increasing costs, including fuel costs;
Lack of buses, particularly in rural areas,
and increasing costs of travel

Struggling/failing local businesses;
Stagnating local economy;
Lack of inward investment;
Low skills and aspirations;
Low visitor numbers;
Future sustainability of the Town Centre
- retail, evening economy, housing,
heritage, culture, leisure, events, car
parking;
Community perceptions.

Town Deal and Levelling Up projects Medium Medium Medium

3.1

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l

3:
 E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l

Sustainability

A
D

: R
eg

ul
at

or
y

Risk to the environment and future
sustainability

Carbon emissions;
Climate challenge;
Need to find the balance between
sustainability and pay back;
Need to find the balance between
education and enforcement.

Impact on future sustainability;
Impact on value for money;
Reputational risk of failing to lead by
example.

Carbon Reduction Action Plan approved.
Climate Change Strategy approved.
Green Home Grants are in delivery.

Low Medium Medium
Natural environment strategy in development as well as
a single use waste policy.

3.2

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l

3:
 E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l

Environmental
crime

A
D

: N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s

Impact of environmental crime (fly
tipping and littering) on local people,
the local area and the reputation of the
Council

Increase in fly tipping and littering
Education and enforcement;
Partnership working, including with
community groups

Medium Medium Medium

Climate Change Strategy;
Working with partners, particularly schools to educate
and Lincolnshire County Council to make it easier to
dispose of waste appropriately;
Environment Bill - opportunity to work with
manufacturers.
Development of a partnership environmental crime
enforcement contract.

4.1

Fi
na

nc
ia

l

4:
 S

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y

Budget

A
D

: F
in

an
ce Risk around the long term balancing of

the budget with economic and funding
uncertainty

Reduction of government funding;
Reduction in income;
Capital expenditure;
Impact of Internal Drainage Board (IDB)
levy;
Inflation;
Fuel shortages;
Ukraine conflict

Lack of money and lack of certainty
going forward;
Failure to balance budget in future years

Medium Term Financial Strategy;
Budgetary process;
Sound level of reserves
Continued close monitoring

Medium High High

Future mitigation: action to be takenCause/s Potential impact and consequencesRe
f

Risk name DescriptionRi
sk

ca
te

go
ry Risk score

Co
rp

or
at

e
Pr

io
ri

ty Mitigation: existing control measures in
placeRi

sk
ow

ne
r

P
age 11



Appendix A BBC strategic risk register

Likelihood Impact Overall risk
Future mitigation: action to be takenCause/s Potential impact and consequencesR

ef Risk name Description

R
is

k
ca

te
go

ry Risk score

Co
rp

or
at

e
Pr

io
ri

ty Mitigation: existing control measures in
placeR

is
k

ow
ne

r

4.2

M
an

ag
er

ia
l &

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l

4:
 S

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y

Service delivery
A

D
: C

or
po

ra
te

Risks to service delivery

Capacity, workload and resilience;
Recruitment and retention;
Uncertainty around Local Government
Reorganisation (LGR);
Compliance failure (audit, health &
safety, safeguarding, information
governance and management, legal);
Technical infrastructure failure;
Cyber incident;
Negative press;
Effects of change and how it affects
both officers and elected Members.

Failure in service delivery;
Impact on local people;
Impact on staff;
Impact on budget;
Reputational damage;
Failure of third party service delivery;
Contract failure.

Staff resources maximised under the
Partnership;
Working with external partners to
deliver shared priorities;
HR support on recruitment and
retention;
Training plans;
Values & behaviours work;
Annual Delivery Plan, Workforce
Development, policies and procedures.

Medium Medium Medium

4.3

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

4:
 S

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y

Civil contingency
risks

A
D

: R
eg

ul
at

or
y

Community risks shared across
Lincolnshire, managed in partnership
with the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum
(LRF)

Impact of Covid19;
Influenza type disease;
East coast flooding;
Inland flooding;
Severe weather;
Fuel shortages;
Loss of critical infrastructure;
Animal disease;
Environmental pollution and industrial
accidents;
Transport accidents;
Business Continuity incident.

Failure in service delivery;
Impact on local people;
Reputational damage;
Detrimental economic impact on
business.

Community Risk Register monitored by
the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum (LRF);
Work with partners to assess, monitor
and plan for these risks together.
Exercising of plans and training of staff.

Medium High Medium
Additional mitigations are considered by the
Governance Group/LT Governance.
Partner to the SLA with the LRF.P

age 12



Low Medium High Very High
Likelihood

Very High

High

Medium

Low

Risk Scoring Matrix (The Current Risk Level including mitigation)
Im

pa
ct

Page 13



Boston Corporate Strategy 2020-2024

Priority 1 - People Focused People
Priority 2 - Future Prosperity, Regeneration and Inclusive Growth Prosperity
Priority 3 - Environmental Awareness and Accountability Environment
Priority 4 - Delivering high quality services and maximising use of technology to support residents Services

P
age 14



P
age 15



P
age 16



Appendix A BBC strategic risk register

For reference, the category definitions are set out below:

1 - LOW 2 - MEDIUM 3 - HIGH 4 - VERY HIGH
-        Never happened -        Happened a few times in 10 yrs -        Numerous times in 10 yrs -        Often in last 10 yrs
-        No more than once in ten years -        Happened in last 3 yrs -        Happened in last year -        More than once in last year
-        Extremely unlikely to ever happen -        Could happen again in year -        Likely to happen again in year -        Expected to happen again in year

SERVICE DELIVERY FINANCE REPUTATION PEOPLE
(Core business, Objectives, Targets) (Funding streams, Financial loss, Cost) (Statutory duty, Publicity, Embarrassment) (Loss of life, Physical injury,

Emotional distress)
4 Prolonged interruption to core service. Severe costs incurred Loss of life

VERY HIGH Failure of key strategic project. Financial loss >£160,000 Multiple casualties
(Disastrous impact, Impact on whole Council

Catastrophic failure) Statutory intervention
3 Key targets missed. Significant costs incurred Local media interest Serious injuries

HIGH Some services compromised Financial loss <£160,000 Traumatic experience
(Significant impact, Re-jig of budgets required Exposure to dangerous conditions

Disruption to key services) Service budgets exceeded Impact on public opinion
2 Some costs incurred Limited local publicity Minor injuries or discomfort

MEDIUM Financial loss <£25,000 Mainly within local government community Feelings of unease.
(Minor impact on Minor impact on budgets Causes staff concern
non-core services) Handled by line manager

1 Little loss anticipated Little or no publicity
LOW Financial loss <£10,000 Little staff comment

(No noticeable impact)

Risk categories Risk controls
Contractual/Supplier Terminate - rarely, we may be able to stop doing an activity altogether
Customer/Citizen Tolerate - accept the risk and live with it, particularly if it is within the tolerance threshold or where the cost of mitigating action would outweigh the benefits
Economic Transfer - move all or part of the risk to a third party or through insurance; however, sometimes accountability still remains so caution is advised
Environmental Treat - take action to control the likelihood and/or impact and set a target level of risk if appropriate i.e. If the action should reduce the overall risk score once implemented
Financial
Governance
Legal Risk appetite
Legislative & Regulatory Minimal: Avoidance of risk and uncertainty; minimal exposure to risk preferred; consequently likely to be low potential for reward / achieving a stretching objective;
Managerial & Professional corresponding risk score = low
Partnership
Physical Cautious: Preference for safe options with low to medium risk; consequently reduced potential for reward / achieving a stretching objective; tight controls in place;
Political corresponding risk score = low to medium
Procurement/Competitive
Social/People Creative and aware: Willing to consider all potential options and choose the one most likely to achieve the objective, while also providing an acceptable level of reward and value for money;
Technological balanced approach recognising that things may go wrong but we will learn from them; corresponding risk score = medium

Seek: Eager to be innovative and to choose options offering potentially higher rewards, despite greater inherent risk;
willing to tolerate uncertainty and accept possibility of significant loss; corresponding risk score = high

Handled within normal day-to-day routines

LIKELIHOOD

IMPACT

National media interest seriously affecting
public opinion

Comment from external inspection agencies

Management action required to overcome short-
term difficulties

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit
Annual Report 2021/22

For all your assurance needs

Boston Borough
Council

Page 19

Agenda Item 2



What we do best…

Innovative assurance services
Specialists in internal audit

Comprehensive risk management
Experts in countering fraud

…and what sets us apart

Unrivalled best value to our customers
Existing strong regional public sector

partnership
Auditors with the knowledge and expertise to

get the job done
Already working extensively with the not for

profit and third sector

Page 20



This report has been prepared solely for the use of Members and Management of Boston Borough Council.  Details may be made
available to specified external organisations, including external auditors, but otherwise the report should not be used or referred to in
whole or in part without prior consent.  No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared and is not
intended for any other purpose.

The matters raised in this report are only those that came to our attention during the course of our work – there may be
weaknesses in governance, risk management and the system of internal control that we are not aware of because they did not form
part of our work programme, were excluded from the scope of individual audit engagements or were not bought to our attention.
The opinion is based solely the work undertaken as part of the agreed internal audit plan.

Contents

Lucy Pledge - Head of Audit and Risk
Matt Waller – Audit Manager
Paul Berry – Principal Auditor

Lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk
Matthew.Waller@lincolnshire.gov.uk
Paul.Berry@lincoln.gov.uk

Page 1Annual Opinion
Governance
Risk
Internal Control
Financial Control

Page 11Our work
Scope of Work
Restriction of Scope
Other Significant Work
Quality Assurance

Page 14Benchmarking
Assurances
Recommendations
Key Performance Indicators

Page 16Appendices
Details of Audits
Details of Audit Plan Changes
Benchmarking Data
Assurance Definitions
Glossary of Terms

Page 21

mailto:Matthew.Waller@lincolnshire.gov.uk


Purpose of Annual Report
The purpose of the Annual Internal Audit Report is to meet the Head of Internal Audit annual

reporting requirements set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the
Accounts and Audit Regulations.  In particular:-

• Include an opinion on the overall adequacy of and effectiveness of the Council's governance, risk
and control framework and therefore the extent to which the Council can rely on it;

• Inform how the plan was discharged and the overall outcomes of the work undertaken that
supports the opinion;

• A statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the results of the internal audit quality
assurance);

• Draw attention to any issues particularly relevant to the Annual Governance Statement

Introduction

1

Governance Performing Adequately–
Some improvements
identified over the Council’s
Governance, Risk and Control
framework  to manage
medium risks across the
Council

Risk Performing Adequately–
Some improvements
identified over the Council’s
Governance, Risk and Control
framework  to manage
medium risks across the
Council

Internal
Control

Performing Adequately –
Some improvements
identified over the Council’s
Governance, Risk and Control
framework  to manage
medium risks across the
Council

Financial
Control

Performing Adequately –
Some improvement required
to manage a significant
governance issue or high risk
in a specific business area or
medium risk across the
Council.

For the twelve months ended 31
March 2022 the Council's
arrangements for governance, risk
management and the control
framework have continued to work
adequately.

External Audits annual report for
2021/22 and our internal audit work
have highlighted some areas to address
in governance, financial and internal
controls.

Our annual Combined Assurance
report to management and the Audit
and Governance Committee reported
an increase in Red and Amber
assurance areas, compared to
2020/21.

External Audits report highlighted
issues with the accounts audit – with
high and medium priority findings in
their annual report.  They also
reported actions from 2020/21 which
had not been addressed and
highlighted other issues around the
quality and availability of financial
working papers for the close down of
accounts.

Page 22



Governance
"Achieving the Intended Outcomes While Acting in the Public Interest at all

Times”

It is comprised of systems, processes, culture and values, by which the
Council is directed and controlled and through which they account to,

engage with, and where appropriate, lead their communities.

Each year the Council is required to reflect on
how its governance arrangements have
worked – identifying any significant
governance issues that it feels should be
drawn to the attention of the public – in the
interests of accountability and transparency.

While the delivery of services in 2021/22
continued to support the Council's response to
COVID19, in the latter part of the year there
was also a sense of normal service being
resumed. There are still challenges in aligning
the Partnerships governance structures and
controls but work is in place to address both
process and culture, led by the Senior
Leadership Team.

In March 2020, the Council approved a new
Corporate Strategy 2020-30 which sets the
direction for the next ten years.  This Strategy
details the Council’s strategic aims and how
these will be met.

Supporting this is the first Annual Delivery plan
21/22 for the partnership. The end of year
report has gone through the Senior Leadership
team and reports good achievements across a
range of delivery tasks and projects.

During 2021 South Holland DC joined  the
strategic alliance of East Lindsey DC and
Boston BC to form the South, East
Lincolnshire Council Partnership.  A shared
Corporate Management team is in place with
officers from all three Councils taking key

senior roles within the organisation.

Our work has confirmed that progress has
been made on management oversight and
good governance. There is greater focus in the
monitoring and reporting of completed
activities & actions.

The Senior Leadership Team meet monthly to
review governance matters and actions.
Member scrutiny across the Partnership has
been reviewed and updated to ensure that the
differences in approach leads to effective
decision making.

3Page 23



Governance
"Achieving the Intended Outcomes While Acting in the Public Interest at all

Times”

It is comprised of systems, processes, culture and values, by which the
Council is directed and controlled and through which they account to,

engage with, and where appropriate, lead their communities.

The 2021/22 Annual Governance Statement
(AGS) had not been drafted at the time of writing
this report. The Audit & Governance Committee
reviews the draft and final versions of the Annual
Governance Statement.

The 2020/21 AGS stated that “Overall, we can
confirm that we are satisfied that we have
effective arrangements in place for the
governance of Boston Borough Council and that
we have a robust system of internal control
which is fit for purpose. No significant gaps have
been identified”

Four areas were identified as requiring
improvement and were included and tracked
through the Annual Delivery Plan.  We could only
trace one action relating to IT Security being
monitored this way.

The actions are –
• Audit and Governance Committee Financial

Training
• Implement Code of Conduct arrangements
• Post Covid working arrangements
• IT Security

The External Audit Completion review, reported
to Audit and Governance Committee in March
2022 raises significant issues found when
reviewing the accounts.  Issues included -

• Significant delays in management providing
information.

• Poor quality working papers
• Early requested start to the audit delayed by a

lack of responses from the Council.

The report also made three high priority findings
which are –
• The Council has failed to maintain an asset

register that records all the information
necessary for it to calculate its required
financial statement entries, specifically it does
not hold historical cost information.

• The Council’s finance team experienced
turnover of several key posts during the
accounts production timeframe. Our audit has
identified that the standard of the working
papers provided to support the financial
statements fell below the standard we would
expect to see, and significant delays have been
encountered in the provision of required
information by management.

• Our testing of the Council’s property assets
has confirmed that it has not maintained an
accurate database of its portfolio of assets,
specifically the floor areas of buildings

External Audit stated they thought this was a
one-off dip in performance and not a general
decline. Detailed reporting and monitoring is
required to ensure performance and actions
recommended by External Audit are
implemented.

Further work and monitoring is required around
the tracking and reporting of AGS actions and on
the actions identified by External Audit. We are
recommending that governance and oversight
arrangements for Annual Governance Statement
and External Audit actions  are implemented
and results reported to the Audit and
Governance Committee. 4Page 24



Governance
"Achieving the Intended Outcomes While Acting in the Public Interest at all

Times”

It is comprised of systems, processes, culture and values, by which the
Council is directed and controlled and through which they account to,

engage with, and where appropriate, lead their communities.

We have completed a Governance Health Check
desktop review  which tested the Partnerships
compliance with the seven key principles of Good
Governance set by CIPFA.  The results of this
were positive and we will follow this up with
further reviews on Governance and Culture in
2022/23.

The Council’s Combined Assurance report is a key
element of its governance and assurance
arrangements.  It provides the Senior Leadership
& Audit and Governance Committee with better
understanding on the assurances across all the
Council's critical services, key risks, partnerships,
and projects – identifying any areas for greater
oversight, improvement and assurance gaps.

Overall, there is a positive realistic assurance
picture for the Council but one that reflects the
complex environment in which it operates –
recognising that some areas will remain Amber.

This year's assessment of the level of assurance
resulted in an increase of 1% of Red Assurance,
an increase of 12% in Amber assurance and a
decrease of 13% in Green assurance. Providing a
realistic assessment which aligned with results of
external and internal assurance work.

Red Assurance – 2%
Amber Assurance – 43%
Green Assurance – 55%

Considering the above, our overall opinion of
Governance is assessed as Performing
Adequately.

4

Governance
assurance

Assessed as
Performing Adequately

Page 25



Risk
Good risk management is part of the way we work. It is about taking the

right risks when making decisions or where we need to encourage
innovation in times of major change – balancing risk, quality, cost and

affordability. This puts us in a stronger position to deliver our goals and
provide excellent services.

Risk
Management

assurance

Assessed as
Performing Adequately

5

The Council’s risk management arrangements
were assessed as Amber down from Green from
2020/21 through the combined assurance review.

There are established overarching structures and
processes for identifying, assessing and managing
risk which have remained effective for strategic
risk reporting.

Strategic risks have recently been updated by SLT
and presented to members for review and
approval.  The risks represent current and
emerging risks for the Council. Work is also
underway to develop a Partnership wide Strategic
Risk register to better understand and monitor key
risks.

Further work is also planned with risk
management professionals to review and update
the Councils risk appetite, we will follow up on
this work and report the results.

Improvement is required to progress how risk is
embedded across the Authority.  In particular,
ensuring there is regular formalised review of
directorate  risk registers and that these are used
to capture and report all programme, project,
partnership and service risks.

Fraud risks have not been reported to the Audit
and Governance Committee during 2021/22.

We will review risk management as part of our
2022/23 Audit plan to provide assurance on the
planned risk management work.

We’ve confirmed that the Council’s Fraud Risk
Register has not been updated during the year.
Fraud risk is prevalent across all Local Authorities
and as part of good risk management practice  a
regular review of fraud risk and associated
mitigations should be undertaken and subject to
oversight at SLT and Audit & Governance
Committee.  A full review of the risk register
during 2022/23 needs to be undertaken to ensure
that appropriate understanding and mitigations
are in place.  Fraud was assessed as Amber in the
2021/22 Combined Assurance report.

The above information helped inform the Head of
Internal Audit opinion.

Page 26



Our opinion is based  on a number of sources of
intelligence including the outcome of our internal
audit work, through the combined assurance
work and other sources.

There was one area where we gave a Limited
assurance opinion this year - :
- Housing Benefit Subsidy Testing

There were no Low Assurance opinions -

We issued consultancy reports on the
management of Towns Fund.  Although no
opinion was given the report highlighted areas to
address for the Council.  We will follow this up
with further assurance work in 2022/23.

This year's assessment of the level of assurance
resulted in an increase of 12% in amber assurance
ratings.  Providing a realistic assessment of the
risks and issues facing the Council.

Two areas identified as red assurance –
Procurement and ICT Project Management
Capacity are both included in the 2022/23 audit
plan for further review.

During the year we made 43 High / Medium
priority recommendations for improvement. So
far 80% of those due before the end of June 22
have been implemented, we continue to monitor
the outstanding actions through regular follow
up.

We continue to monitor all outstanding audit
actions and full details are provided in the
Internal Audit Progress report.

See appendix 1 for full details of audits
completed during the year.

Our position as Internal Auditor across the SELCP
and PSPS allows us to work more effectively in
our testing and reporting.  Meaning we maintain
a robust overview of systems and controls and
can coordinate findings and issues efficiently.

Continued work and monitoring is required
around the tracking and reporting of the Red
assurance areas identified, Procurement and ICT
Project Management. We are recommending
that governance and oversight arrangements for
Procurement and ICT Project Management are
included in the Annual Governance Statement
and results continue to be reported to the Audit
and Governance Committee.

Internal Control
We take account of the outcome of our audit work during the  2020/21 year.
As our audit plans include different activities each year it is not unexpected
that assurance varies. However the assurance levels still give insight into the

Council’s control environment.

6Page 27



The outcome of our internal audit work and the
intelligence gathered through the combined
assurance framework has helped inform the Head
of Internal Audit’s opinion on Internal Control.

Internal Control
We take account of the outcome of our audit work during the  2020/21 year.
As our audit plans include different activities each year it is not unexpected
that assurance varies. However the assurance levels still give insight into the

Council’s control environment.

Internal Control
assurance

Assessed as
Performing Adequately

6Page 28



Internal Control
A Combined Assurance Status review has been produced this year collating
information from each Assistant Director and Service Manager on the level

of confidence they can provide on service delivery arrangements,
management of risks, operation of controls and performance for their area

of responsibility.  This information provides key assurance evidence to
support the Head of Internal Audit opinion.

Combined Assurance We help co ordinate the Council’s assurance
intelligence.

The overall assurance status remains positive,
although there has been a 12% increase in
Medium (Amber) and a very slight increase in Low
(Red) assurance opinions.

Those areas with a Low level of assurance are:

• Procurements
• ICT Projects

7

Overall Assurance Status 21/22
2%

43%
55%

High (Green) Medium (Amber)

Low (Red)

Overall Assurance Status 20/21

68%

31%

1%

High Medium Low

Page 29



Financial Control
Our audit plans include providing assurance over our key financial systems,

the level of risk influences frequency.

Our work provides an important assurance element to support the External
Auditor’s opinion on the Council’s Statement of Accounts.

Financial Control
assurance

Assessed as
Performing Adequately

During the year we reviewed:
Key Controls Accountancy Services -
• Income
• Bank Rec
• Accounts Payable
• Accounts Received

All of which received Substantial Assurance

CIPFA’s Financial Management Code (FM
Code) was introduced from April 2021.  It
sets out the standards of financial
management councils should, as a minimum,
achieve.

Management self assessed against the FM
code – identifying no areas of non-
compliance but did identify one
improvements around:
• Maintaining a rolling 5-year assessment

and enhanced monitoring for the
Medium-Term Financial Plan.

The Council’s External Auditors published
their Annual Report in February 2022 for the
year ended 31st March 2021.  We have
already reported the issues they identified
when auditing the accounts.

The report had not concluded its Value For
Money work but stated that no significant
weaknesses in arrangements had been
raised.

8

The outcome of our internal audit work and the
intelligence gathered through other sources of
assurance has helped inform the Head of Internal
Audit’s opinion on Financial Control.

The above information helped inform the Head of
Internal Audit opinion

Page 30



Our Work
The Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining risk management

processes, control systems and governance arrangements.  Internal Audit
plays a vital role in providing independent risk based and objective assurance

and insight on how these arrangements are working.  Internal Audit forms
part of the Council's assurance framework.

Scope of Work
Our risk based internal audit plan was prepared
taking into account the critical activities and key
risks to support the basis of my annual opinion.
It has remained flexible to enable us to respond
to emerging risks and maintain effective focus.

The Audit & Governance  Committee approved
the 2021/22 original audit plan of 145 days in
March 2021. We have delivered 97% of the
revised plan and more details on  the plan can be
found in Appendix 1.

Restriction on Scope
In carrying out our work we identified no
unexpected restrictions to the scope of our
work.

The impact of Covid-19 meant that our full years’
audit plan did not commence until quarter 2. As
such the full plan could not be completed before
the end of April 2022 as planned and so this was
extended until the end of May 2022.

I do not consider the restrictions and changes to
the plan to have had an adverse effect on my
ability to deliver my overall opinion.  The
combined assurance work undertaken in
December helped in this regard.

We have not experienced any impairment to our
independence or objectivity during the conduct
and delivery of the Internal Audit Plan.

There have been some delays encountered in the
provision of information through our work with
the Council.  This issue has contributed to the
decline in performance in finalising both audit
and committee reports.  The issue has been
raised through discussion with the Chief
Executive and Section 151 Officer who have
offered support in ensuring that going forward
information is promptly provided.

9Page 31



Our Work
Internal Audit’s role include advisory and related client service activities, the

nature and scope of which are agreed with the client, are intended to add
value and improve an organisation’s governance, risk management and
control processes without the internal auditor assuming management

responsibility. Examples include counsel, advice, facilitation and training.

10

Other Significant Work
During the year we have  completed testing of
Housing Benefit Subsidy on behalf of Mazars.
Our testing found multiple errors and a Limited
Assurance report was agreed with management
and report to the Audit and Governance
Committee based on detailed case testing.

Boston Housing Benefit service had breached the
tolerance for incorrect payments and a fine was
imposed due to the inaccuracy of assessing cases.

Actions arising from the report will be tracked
and reported back to management and members.

We produced a combined assurance map which
maps all assurance across the Council using the
'three lines of assurance' model.  This provided
the Council with insight over the assurances
present on its critical activities, key risks, projects
and partnerships.

We have continued to support the Council’s
assurance framework with  consultancy work –
this is where we give support and advice on
governance, risk and control but do not provide
an assurance opinion  : -

• Town’s Fund– We provided an overview of
the Towns Fund Programme. We identified
several areas where Governance could be
strengthened including Programme oversight

and procurement. Our initial work
highlighted support and assurance could be
provided over all of 2022/23 by Internal
Audit attending regular board meetings to
provide supportive insight and challenge to
the programme, this work is included in the
2022/23 plan.

Page 32



Our Work
We recognise the importance of meeting customer expectations as well as
conforming to the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  We
continually focus on delivering high quality audit to our clients – seeking

opportunities to improve where we can.

Quality Assurance
Our commitment to quality begins with ensuring
that we recruit develop and assign appropriately
skilled and experienced people to undertake
your audits.

Having skilled and effective people remains at
the heart of our workforce strategy.  The team
has provision for 23 full time equivalent posts –
established to deliver both the County Councill
and external contracts internal audit plans.

Building capacity & resilience remains a key issue
facing the partnership.   We have secured
additional temporary resources with external
contractors and a further recruitment is planned
in 2022.

During 2022/23 we will continue to build upon
the strong focus on developing the next
generation of audit and risk professionals.  We
will:

• Continue with our apprenticeship scheme
for our audit team.

• worked closely with the University of
Lincoln to restart the year long professional
practice year placement in audit and
finance.

• Set up a graduate training programme –
working with our finance team

Our audit practice includes ongoing quality
reviews for all our assignments.   These reviews
examine all areas of the work undertaken, from
initial planning through to completion and
reporting.   Key targets have been specified - that
the assignment has been completed on time,
within budget and to the required quality
standard.

There is a financial commitment for training and
developing staff. Training provision is continually
reviewed through the appraisal process and
monthly one to one meetings.

All public sector internal audit services are
required to measure how well they conform to
the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.
An External Quality Assessment  must be
undertaken every 5 years – Assurance
Lincolnshire’s second  external assessment was
undertaken in February 2022.  They concluded
that:

“the Assurance Lincolnshire Partnership’s self-
assessment is accurate and as such we conclude
that they FULLY CONFORM to the requirements

of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
and the CIPFA Local Government Application

Note”.

No significant improvement recommendations
were made.   The final report from the External
Quality Assessment will be shared with the
Committee.

12Page 33



Our Work
We recognise the importance of meeting customer expectations as well as
conforming to the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  We
continually focus on delivering high quality audit to our clients – seeking

opportunities to improve where we can.

Quality Assurance
Our quality assurance framework helps us
maintain a continuous improvement plan., which
includes the following:

• Workforce strategy – building capacity and
growing our own talent in both leadership and
professional skills

• Improving the audit process - working with
client senior management to improve
progress and delivery of audits in a remote
(hybrid) working environment

• Continuing professional development -
around new and emerging practice guidance

• Enhance digital capabilities - in line with our
digital strategy, including data analytics

External Audit

Although internal and external auditors carry out
their work with different objectives in mind,
many of the processes are similar and it is good
professional practice that they should work
together closely. Wherever possible, External
Audit will use the results of internal audit work
where it is appropriate.

13Page 34



Benchmarking
Our audit plan includes different activities each year – it is therefore not

unexpected that these vary; however, the assurance levels do give an insight
on the application of the Council's control environment and forms part of

the evidence that helped inform the overall annual opinion.

Increase in
Substantial
Assurance this year

Reduction in Limited
Assurance this year

Assurances

Further details can be found at appendix 1 & 3
12

Recommendations

53%
Medium priority

recommendations
have increased

High priority
recommendations

have  reduced

20%

High 10%

Substantial
80%

Limited
10%

2021/22

20%

53%

27%

2021/22

High Medium Low

Page 35



Benchmarking
Internal Audit's performance is measured against a range of indicators.  The
table at Appendix 4 shows our performance on key indicators at the end of

the year.  We are pleased to report a good level of achievement in delivery of
the revised plan and the added value of our work.

Further details can be found at appendix 1

Performance on Key Indicators

13

Of revised
plan delivered

97% 80% of agreed
actions due

implemented

Of key
financial
systems

delivered

100%
Page 36



Appendix 1 Details of  Audits

14

Audit Rating Type

High

M
edium

Advisory

Total

SELCP - Brexit Substantial
Assurance Risk Based 0 0 0 0

SELCP - Towns Fund
N/A Consultancy 2 6 9 17

Income
Substantial
Assurance Risk Based 1 3 0 4

Housing Benefit Subsidy
Limited
Assurance Grant Work 3 1 1 5

SELCP - Workforce Plan Substantial
Assurance Risk Based 0 2 1 3

SELCP - Flood
Management

In progress Risk Based 0 0 0 0

SELCP - Carbon Reduction
Substantial
Assurance Risk Based 0 5 1 6

Combined Assurance N/A Consultancy N/A N/A N/A N/A
Boston Town Area
Committee

High
Assurance Risk Based 0 0 3 3

Key Controls
Substantial
Assurance Risk Based 2 4 0 6

ICT Security Substantial
Assurance Follow Up 2 1 0 3

SELCP - Contract
Management

Substantial
Assurance* Risk Based 0 8* 0 8

SELCP - ICT Patch
Management

Substantial
Assurance Risk Based 2 1 1 4

*indicative
Total 12 31 16 59

Page 37



Appendix 1 Details of  Audits

15

Audit Rating Type

High

M
edium

Advisory

Total

Value for Money Removed
Strategic Alliance Removed
ICT Programme & Project
Management Deferred until 2022/23

Page 38



Appendix 2 Details of  Audit Plan Changes

The original approved plan was 145 days –

A small number of audits were removed from
the original audit plan and this was due to re-
prioritising audit resources to those areas of
highest risk.

Outlined below are the areas that have been
removed from  the original plan:

• Wellbeing
• Uniform System Implementation
• Strategic Alliance

During the year we were requested to
undertake the following additional work:

• Covid 19 Enforcement & Health & Safety
arrangements.

• Governance Health Check

The annual audit plan remains flexible with a
process to postpone and change audits.   This
means we can adapt our plan and coverage to
emerging risks but maintain control and
transparency on changes which must be
approved by management and the Audit &
Governance Committee.

16Page 39



Appendix 3 Benchmarking Data

Comparison of  Assurances
2020/21 and 2021/22

Comparison of Recommendations
2020/21 and 2021/22

17

Increase in
Substantial

reports

Increase in Medium
priority

recommendations

43% 42%

14%
20%

53%

27%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

High Medium Low

Recommendations

2020/21 2021/22

25%

63%

12%

0%

10%

80%

10%

0%
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

High Substantial Limited Low

Assurance

2020/21 2021/22

Page 40



Appendix 4 Benchmarking Data

Performance Indicator Annual Target Actual

Percentage of plan completed
(based on revised plan) 100% 93%

Percentage of key financial systems completed 100% 85%

Percentage of recommendations agreed 100% 100%

Percentage of recommendations due implemented 100% or escalated 100%

Performance on Key Indicators

18

Performance Indicator Annual Target Actual

Percentage of plan completed
(based on revised plan) 100% 97%

Percentage of recommendations agreed 100% 100%

Percentage of recommendations implemented 100% or escalated 80%

Timescales:

Draft Report issued within 10 days of completion

Final Report issued within 5 days of management
response

Draft Report issued within 2 months of fieldwork
commencing

100%

100%

80%

70*

80%

60%**

*This is a significant improvement on 0% last year. We continue to embed the
improvement actions identified last year to reduce the delays in the quality
control process.

**This is a slight decline on last year for a number of reasons, including
changing the target from 3 months to 2 months throughout the partnership.
We also continue to experience delays in obtaining information from auditees.

Page 41



Appendix 5 Assurance Definitions

High

Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level of
confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of risks,
and the operation of controls and / or performance.

The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.
Controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are
operating effectively.

Substantial

Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a substantial
level of confidence (assurance) on service delivery arrangements,
management of risks, and operation of controls and / or performance.

There are some improvements needed in the application of controls to
manage risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as adequate,
appropriate and operating sufficiently so that the risk of the activity
not achieving its objectives is medium to low.

Limited

Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a limited level
of confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of risks,
and operation of controls and/or performance.

The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be
operating or are inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are
unlikely to give a reasonable level of confidence (assurance) that the
risks are being managed effectively.  It is unlikely that the activity will
achieve its objectives.

Low

Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant
concerns on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and
operation of controls and / or performance.

There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key risks
or the controls have been evaluated as not adequate, appropriate or
are not being effectively operated. Therefore the risk of the activity not
achieving its objectives is high.

19Page 42



Appendix 6 Glossary of Terms

Significance
The relative importance of a matter within the
context in which it is being considered,
including quantitative and qualitative factors,
such as magnitude, nature, effect, relevance
and impact.  Professional judgment assists
internal auditors when evaluating the
significance of matters within the context of the
relevant objectives.

Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion
The rating, conclusion and/or other description
of results provided by the Head of Internal
Audit addressing, at a broad level, governance,
risk management and/or control processes of
the organisation.  An overall opinion is the
professional judgement of the Head of Internal
Audit based on the results of a number of
individual engagements and other activities for
a specific time interval.

Governance
Comprises the arrangements (including
political, economic, social, environmental,
administrative, legal and other arrangements)
put in place to ensure that the outcomes for
intended stakeholders are defined and
achieved.
Risk
The possibility of an event occurring that will
have an impact on the achievement of
objectives.  Risk is measured in terms of impact
and likelihood.

Control
Any action taken by management, the board
and other parties to manage risk and increase
the likelihood that established objectives and
goals will be achieved.  Management - plans,
organises and directs the performance of
sufficient actions to provide reasonable
assurance that objectives and goals will be
achieved.

Impairment
Impairment to organisational independence
and individual objectivity may include personal
conflict of interest, scope limitations,
restrictions on access to records, personnel and
properties and resource limitations (funding).

20Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Auditor’s Annual Report

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 3



01

02

03

04

Contents

Introduction

Audit of the financial statements

Commentary on VFM arrangements

Other reporting responsibilities

Our reports are prepared in the context of the ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’ issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd. Reports and letters prepared by appointed auditors and addressed to members or officers are
prepared for the sole use of the Council. No responsibility is accepted to any member or officer in their individual capacity or to any third party.

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales

2

P
age 46



Section 01:
Introduction 

P
age 47



1. Introduction

Purpose of the Auditor’s Annual Report
Our Auditor’s Annual Report (AAR) summarises the work we have undertaken as the auditor for Boston Borough Council (‘the Council’) for the year ended 31 March 2021. Although this report is addressed to the Council, it is
designed to be read by a wider audience including members of the public and other external stakeholders.

Our responsibilities are defined by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’) issued by the National Audit Office (‘the NAO’). The remaining sections of the AAR outline how we have
discharged these responsibilities and the findings from our work. These are summarised below.

4

Introduction Audit of the financial statements Commentary on VFM arrangements Other reporting responsibilities and our fees

Opinion on the financial statements
We issued our audit report on 12 April 2022. Our opinion on the financial statements was
unqualified. Wider reporting responsibilities

We have not yet received group instructions from the National Audit Office confirming their
requirements in relation to the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts. We are unable to
issue our audit certificate until this is formally confirmed.

The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the elector, the 
opportunity to question us about the accounting records of the Council and to consider any 
objection made to the accounts. We did not receive any questions or objections in respect of 
the Council’s financial statements.

Value for Money arrangements
In our audit report issued we reported that we had not completed our work on the Council’s
arrangements to secure, economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and
had not issued recommendations in relation identified significant weaknesses in those
arrangements at the time of reporting. Section 3 confirms that we have now completed this
work and provides our commentary on the Council’s arrangements.

P
age 48



Section 02:
Audit of the financial statements

5

P
age 49



2. Audit of the financial statements 

The scope of our audit and the results of our opinion

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Code, and International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs).

The purpose of our audit is to provide reasonable assurance to users that the financial statements are free from
material error. We do this by expressing an opinion on whether the statements are prepared, in all material
respects, in line with the financial reporting framework applicable to the Council and whether they give a true
and fair view of the Council’s financial position as at 31 March 2021 and of its financial performance for the year
then ended.

Our audit report, gave an unqualified opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Qualitative aspects of the Council’s accounting practices

We reviewed the Council’s accounting policies and disclosures and concluded they generally complied with the
2020/21 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting, appropriately tailored to the Council’s circumstances.

A single exception in the application of these policies by the Council was noted, in that it has failed to effect the
necessary transfer of the difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation between
the Revaluation Reserve and the Capital Adjustment Account. A methodology was agreed with the Council to
enable the amount of this transfer to be calculated.

We also noted that the Council had again departed from MHCLG's Statutory Guidance on Minimum Revenue
Provision in respect or its property fund assets. Whilst we were satisfied that the Council's rationale for this
departure is reasonable and that its provision is prudent, we were aware that this is still an area or focus by
MHCLG, CIPFA and the National Audit Office.

Significant difficulties during the audit
During the course of the audit a number of significant difficulties were encountered, as outlined below, although
we had the full co-operation of management in resolving these:

• Early commencement of audit
At the request of the S151 Officer the commencement date of our audit was brought forward from that
originally planned to enable work to be completed prior to the departure of the principal officer responsible
for the production of the financial statements.

No draft accounts or working papers of a suitable quality were produced to support the audit in this period,
despite repeated management assurances that they would be made available, resulting in the decision to
suspend the audit with a lack of any meaningful progress being made.

• Poor quality working papers
The Council’s finance team experienced turnover of several key posts during the accounts production
timeframe. This resulted in a loss of detailed knowledge over particular aspects of the accounts production
and ledger processes and increased time pressures on remaining staff over this period.

Our audit identified that the standard of the working papers provided to support the figures within the
financial statements fell below our expectations. Examples included missing information, incorrect
interpretation and application of guidance and incorrect population of supporting models, all resulting in
incorrect disclosure of financial statement figures and additional time being required to resolve issues.

• Significant delays in management providing required information
We faced a number of significant delays in the provision of requested information from management during
the course of the audit, in some cases this taking in excess of a month to receive. As a consequence the
audit progressed at a far slower pace than envisaged.

6

Introduction Audit of the financial statements Commentary on VFM arrangements Other reporting responsibilities and our fees

P
age 50



Section 03:
Commentary on VFM arrangements 

7

P
age 51



Approach to Value for Money arrangements work 

We are required to consider whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the
work we are required to carry out and sets out the reporting criteria that we are required to consider. The
reporting criteria are:

• Financial sustainability - How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to
deliver its services

• Governance - How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - How the Council uses information about its costs and
performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services

At the planning stage of the audit, we undertake work so we can understand the arrangements that the Council
has in place under each of the reporting criteria; as part of this work we may identify risks of significant
weaknesses in those arrangements.

Where we identify significant risks, we design a programme of work (risk-based procedures) to enable us to
decide whether there is a significant weakness in arrangements. Although we describe this work as planning
work, we keep our understanding of arrangements under review and update our risk assessment throughout
the audit to reflect emerging issues that may suggest there are further risks of significant weaknesses.

Where our risk-based procedures identify actual significant weaknesses in arrangements, we are required to
report these and make recommendations for improvement.

The table below summarises the outcomes of our work against each reporting criteria. We did not identify any
risks of significant weakness, or actual significant weakness, in the Council’s arrangements On the following
pages we outline further detail of the work we have undertaken against each reporting criteria, including the
judgements we have applied.

3. VFM arrangements – Overall summary

8

Reporting criteria Commentary page reference Risks of significant weaknesses in arrangements 
identified?

Actual significant weaknesses in arrangements 
identified?

Financial sustainability 9 No No

Governance 11 No No

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness 14 No No

Introduction Audit of the financial statements Commentary on VFM arrangements Other reporting responsibilities and our fees

P
age 52



3. VFM arrangements – Financial Sustainability

9

Introduction Audit of the financial statements Commentary on VFM arrangements Other reporting responsibilities and our fees

Overall commentary on the Financial Sustainability reporting criteria

Background to the Council’s operating environment in 2020/21

The Council entered 2020/21 at the start of the national lockdown, and faced a significant operational impact
from the effects of the pandemic. In response to the Covid-19 pandemic, central government made a series of
policy announcements, a number of which have impacted on local authorities such as Boston Borough Council.
During the 2020/21 year the Council dealt with a wide range of issues to support local residents and
businesses.

Some of the Government’s initiatives in response to the Covid-19 pandemic have been backed by additional
funding, and the Council received a range of government grants during 2020/21 to either support local
businesses/individuals or meet the Council’s own costs. The Council received around £1.1m of Covid-19
Response funding to cover the Council’s extra costs. The Council also received around £0.8m relating to the
income compensation scheme for the sales, fees and charges income lost during the lockdown periods.

2020/21 Financial statement performance

We have carried out a high level analysis of the audited financial statements, including the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, Movement in Reserves Statement and the Balance Sheet.

The Council’s financial position as reported in the balance sheet does not give us cause for concern relating to
financial stability. Investment balances have increased from £29.6m to £30.7m whilst borrowing levels have
remained stable at c. £16.7m. Increases in both short term debtors and creditors, of £8.7m and £9.1m
respectively, are evident, which, as at other councils this year, are largely due to the impacts of the Covid-19
funding arrangements.

The most significant change in the balance sheet relates to movements in the Council's share of the pension
fund net liability (being a deficit position) of £42.7m, up from £34.3m in the prior year. It is not unusual to see
material movements in the net pension liability and this is consistent with our experience at other local
authorities. The deficit position is not unusual and is a recognised area of financial challenge for local
authorities.

The Council's useable reserves have increased from £16.5m to £22.3m in 2020/21, with:

• General Fund & Earmarked Reserves of £20.7m, up from £15.3m in the prior year; and

• Capital Reserves of £1.4m, up from £0.9m in 2019/20.

These reserves provide some mitigation against future financial challenges, and will assist in addressing future
volatility and support savings and efficiencies plans and the capital programme. The Council will need to
continue to ensure that any use of reserves to smooth the financial position over the next few years is properly
planned and the use of reserves cannot be relied on to provide a long term solution to funding gaps.
Notwithstanding this, our work has not highlighted a risk of significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements
for ensuring financial sustainability.

Financial planning and monitoring arrangements

In March 2020 the Council set a balanced budget for the 2020/21 financial year and during the year reported its
financial position through the quarterly financial performance reports.

We reviewed performance reports issued to the Cabinet during the year as well as performing audit work over
the going concern assertion as part of our work on the financial statements. A final report covering the whole
year and outturn went to Cabinet in December 2021 and we are satisfied that the reports adequately contain
detail on financial performance, including variances to budget. The reports also contain information on progress
against the capital programme and reasons for over or underspends against the budget profile to provide
adequate scrutiny and oversight in this respect. The year end position is also presented in the financial
statements.

Improvement opportunity: Whilst not inadequate, the quarterly finance report is not particularly well
laid out and the Council would benefit from updating its report format to be clearer and more
informative.

We have considered the arrangements in place in respect of budget management as part of the Governance
criteria on page 11 and not identified any significant weaknesses.

P
age 53



3. VFM arrangements – Financial Sustainability

10

Introduction Audit of the financial statements Commentary on VFM arrangements Other reporting responsibilities and our fees

Overall commentary on the Financial Sustainability reporting criteria (continued)

Arrangements for the identification, management and monitoring of funding gaps and savings

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is a five year plan which sets out the Council’s commitment to
provide quality services that meet the needs of people locally and that represent good value for money within
the overall resources available to it.

A key part of the strategy is to highlight the budget issues that will need to be addressed by the Council over
the coming financial years, by forecasting the level of available resources from all sources and budget
pressures relating to both capital and revenue spending as well as assessing whether sufficient reserves and
provisions are held for past and unknown events which may impact on the Council’s resources. The MTFS is
prepared alongside other plans and strategies (for example the Capital Strategy incorporating the Asset
Management Plan and Treasury Management Strategy).

The Council has in place an embedded budget setting process which begins in July with approval being sought
for the assumptions and principles on which the budget is to be based. These are used as a part of the
determination of the overall budget position. As part of the process opportunities for cost reductions, income
generation and alternative methods of service delivery such as partnership working are identified.

Within the arrangements a process is in place for challenging any growth items and agreeing the achievability
of planned savings.

Arrangements and approach to 2021/22 financial planning

The arrangements for the 2021/22 budget setting process have largely followed the arrangements in place for
2020/21 but with a better understanding based on the experiences during the year of the impact of Covid-19 on
the Council’s services. There were still though a number of unavoidable uncertainties regarding likelihood and
impact of any future lifting of restrictions or lockdowns, and the availability of any further government support.

A balanced budget for 2021/22 was approved at the March 2021 Council meeting alongside the updated MTFS,
with no unidentified savings targets being required. There is an acknowledgement in preparing the plan that the
roll over of the Local Government Funding Settlement meant that some of the expected changes from the
Business Rates Reset and Review of Relative Needs and Resources (formerly known as the ‘Fair Funding
Review’) were not enforced. Changes in these areas, in addition to the continued receipt of the New Homes
Bonus scheme funding, were regarded as a risk through expected loss of funding so their deferral represented
a gain to the Council’s immediate financial position. The continuing uncertainty does make though strategic
financial planning difficult for Councils, particularly in relation to its General Fund services.

Whilst a balanced revenue budget for 2021/22 was approved savings requirements in subsequent years are
evident. These are partly offset by savings expected to be delivered following the Council’s decision to join the
Public Sector Partnerships Services Ltd. arrangement, in respect of shared back office services, although
further savings are still needed, with £0.8m required in 2022/23 falling to some £0.5m thereafter. The Capital
Programme detailed that £4.5m would be spent over the next five years delivering a number of schemes to
improve the district.

We have reviewed the MTFS and supporting reports to Council in March and are satisfied that it adequately
explained the financial risks and that the main financial assumptions were not unreasonable.

Based on the above considerations we are satisfied there is not a significant weakness in the Council’s
arrangements in relation to financial sustainability.

P
age 54



3. VFM arrangements – Governance

11

Introduction Audit of the financial statements Commentary on VFM arrangements Other reporting responsibilities and our fees

Overall commentary on the Governance reporting criteria

Risk management and monitoring arrangements

The Council has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of effectiveness,
economy and efficiency. In doing this it is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the
governance of its affairs, effective exercise of its functions and arrangements for the management of risk.

The Council has an established risk management framework and systems in place which are built into the
governance structure of the organisation. The Council’s Constitution details that the Audit and Governance
Committee is responsible for overseeing the Council’s risk management arrangements.

The Council has adopted a Risk Management Strategy which sets out its approach to managing risk. To
identify and manage strategic, operational and project risks the Council utilises a risk assessment approach
with details recorded in a risk register. Risk registers are reviewed quarterly but can be updated at any time to
reflect identified risks. We have reviewed the Strategic Risk Register and determined it is adequate for the
Council’s purposes and consistent with sector norms.

The Audit and Governance Committee receives quarterly reports on the Council’s Strategic Risks and provides
oversight on the risk management arrangements in place and the adequacy of the controls and proposed
actions. These arrangements are consistent with what we would expect at a local authority and are adequate
for the Council’s purposes. From our attendance at these meetings, we have seen Members challenge the
scores and key risk management activities to gain assurance about the effectiveness of the arrangements in
place.

Internal Audit

In order to provide assurance over the effective operation of internal controls the Council has engaged City of
Lincoln Council to provide its internal audit service. City of Lincoln’s Audit Manager acts as Head of Internal
Audit. The annual Internal Audit plan is agreed with management at the start of the financial year and is
reviewed by the Audit and Governance Committee prior to final approval.

The audit plan is based on an assessment of risks the Council faces and is designed to ensure there is
assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk
management and control. The planned work can be supplemented if necessary by ad hoc reviews in respect of
suspected irregularities and other work commissioned by Officers and Members of the Council where relevant
to respond to emerging risks and issues. We have reviewed the Internal Audit plan for 2020/21 and confirmed it
is consistent with the risk based approach.

Internal Audit progress reports are presented to Audit and Governance Committee meetings including follow up
reporting on recommendations from previous Internal Audit reports. From our attendance at meetings, we are
satisfied this allows the Committee to effectively hold management to account. At the end of each financial year
the Head of Internal Audit provides an Annual Report including an opinion on the Council’s governance, risk
and control framework based on the work completed during the year.

The Head of Internal Audit Annual Report was presented to Audit and Governance Committee in May 2021. We
have read the annual report, where, based upon the work undertaken by Internal Audit during 2020/21, the
Head of Internal Audit’s overall opinion on the Council’s control environment is:

• “Governance: Performing Well”

• “Risk: Performing Well”

• “Internal Control: Performing Adequately”

• “Financial Control: Performing Well”.

The Council is part of the County Fraud Partnership, has an Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy and a
Whistleblowing policy. The Council carries out proactive anti-fraud work, such as the regular Council Tax Single
person discount reviews, and partakes in the bi-annual National Fraud Initiative. An annual fraud report is taken
to the Audit and Governance Committee. We have reviewed the Annual Fraud Report 2020/21 and have not
identified any significant concerns with these arrangements.

P
age 55



3. VFM arrangements – Governance

12

Introduction Audit of the financial statements Commentary on VFM arrangements Other reporting responsibilities and our fees

Overall commentary on the Governance reporting criteria (continued)

Throughout the year we have attended Audit and Governance Committee meetings. Through attendance at
these meetings we have confirmed that the committee receive regular updates on both internal audit progress
and risk management. We have seen active Member engagement from the Audit and Governance Committee
who challenge the papers and reports which they receive from officers, internal audit and external audit.

Arrangements for budget setting and budgetary control

The Council has an established set of arrangements in place for budget setting and control. The process is set
out and approved through the Constitution, which encompasses the Budgetary and Policy Framework rules.
The framework includes clear responsibilities, including the role of the S151 Officer in leading the budget
setting process and providing professional advice, review by the appropriate Overview and Scrutiny
Committees and Audit and Governance Committee and the reservation of the approval of the Budget to the
Council based on the Cabinet’s recommendation.

Following approval of the budget, budget monitoring commences to monitor progress against targets. Budget
monitoring responsibilities of budget holders are documented and they are supported in this role by the finance
team. Budget monitoring reports are produced on a monthly basis and there are regular meetings held,
including finance team members, to discuss the financial performance and forecasts. There are rules in place
regarding the reporting of budget variances and the requirement to operate within approved budgets.

There are similar processes and controls in place for development and control of the capital programme
alongside the revenue budget setting.

We have reviewed minutes of meetings and the year end reports presented to the Cabinet as well as the
narrative statement within the financial statements. Financial performance is presented in the same report as
service performance and risks providing sufficient and adequate correlation for member oversight. Each report
summarises the financial position of the Council and is supported by a set of appendices that enable Members
to adequately assess budget performance. As previously noted, we believe there is an improvement
opportunity in the format and quality of finance these finance reports.

We have reviewed capital expenditure as presented in the financial statements and no issues arose from our
testing of additions. We have confirmed regular monitoring of the capital programme exists, including the
outturn report. In the main, the capital programme for 2020/21 was met, albeit with £1.4m slippage into 2021/22
relating to the delivery of disabled facilities grant schemes and investment in IT upgrades. The reports provide
sufficient detail to understand the programme as a whole, as well as the current position and any significant
matters arising.

Our review of in-year budget monitoring and discussions with officers confirms the Council’s approach is
consistent with the approach taken at other local authorities, and indicative of adequate arrangements in place.

Arrangements for financial reporting

As explained in the 2020/21 Audit Completion Report presented to the March 2022 meeting of the Audit and
Governance Committee, there have been considerable delays over the audit of the 2020/21 financial
statements. This included insufficient working papers and material errors to correct, mainly caused by the loss
of key financial reporting staff post year-end, but prior to the date the audit was due to commence (June 2021).

The situation was rescued by PSPS, who provided considerable support to the audit team in resolving the
issues arising, albeit over a much delayed period.

Improvement opportunity: We have discussed the performance with Officers and raised specific
recommendations in our Audit Completion Report. Officers have given us assurance that the situation
will be improved for 2021/22.

Because we did not experience such issues in 2018/19 or 2019/20, and we have received said assurance from
Officers on improvements to be made, we have determined that this situation does not give rise to a significant
weakness in arrangements, however we may change that view should the position not improve in 2021/22.

P
age 56



3. VFM arrangements – Governance

13

Introduction Audit of the financial statements Commentary on VFM arrangements Other reporting responsibilities and our fees

Overall commentary on the Governance reporting criteria (continued)

Capital Financing and the Minimum Revenue Provision

Where local authorities fund capital expenditure from borrowing, the associated revenue charge of this
borrowing is normally through a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) rather than depreciation. The total capital
expenditure not yet financed is called the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). Prior to 2008, the calculation
of MRP was specified in law, based on 4% of the CFR. Since then, local authorities have had greater flexibility
to adopt their own approach.

The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement is set out at Note 37 of the financial statements:

As confirmed through our prior year audits, the Council’s current MRP policy is underpinned by formal advice
and a MRP charge of £65k has been made in 2020/21, with £15k relating to a loan made in 2017/18 and £50k
in recognition of the loss of capital value of the property funds. No MRP charge has been made in respect of
the Council’s underlying borrowing in relation to its property fund holdings. The Council’s current approach does
not give rise to a significant weakness in arrangements.

In November 2021, the Government launched a consultation which effectively requires an MRP charge on all
items of capital expenditure and removing the concept of using future capital receipts to offset the need for an
MRP. Prior to the adoption of the MRP policy post consultation, we suggest the Audit & Governance Committee
should be briefed on the changes to the prudential framework and the potential impact to provide assurance
that the Council’s approach is compliant with legislation and to enable the Committee to understand the
compliance with, and attitude towards, MRP guidance.

2020/21 (£’000)

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 20,369

Capital Investment in 2020/21 3,437

Sources of finance (1,447)

Sums set aside from revenue:

Direct revenue contributions (1,990)

Minimum Revenue Provision (65)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 20,304

P
age 57



3. VFM arrangements – Governance

14

Introduction Audit of the financial statements Commentary on VFM arrangements Other reporting responsibilities and our fees

Overall commentary on the Governance reporting criteria (continued)

Decision making arrangements and control framework

The Council has an established governance structure in place which is set out within its Annual Governance
Statement (AGS).

The AGS is a critical component of the Council’s governance arrangements. It is an evidenced self assessment
by the Council on the Council’s governance, assurance and internal control frameworks for the financial year.
As such, those who are responsible for those arrangements must approve it and it this respect it is formally
signed by the Joint Chief Executive and the Leader of the Council. This emphasises that the document is about
all corporate controls and is not just financial controls. We reviewed the AGS as part of our work on the
financial statements with no significant issues arising.

The governance structure, as described in the AGS includes amongst other things the Constitution, the Code of
Corporate Governance and scheme of delegation, which shows the levels of authority required for all key
decisions. The AGS sets out the governance principles which the Council are committed to and within which
the Council conducts its business and affairs. The AGS identifies the arrangements in place to enable the
Council to meet the good governance principles identified.

We reviewed the AGS and observed the Audit and Governance Committee’s review of the AGS and monitoring
of actions throughout the year in relation to any significant governance issues.

The Constitution is kept under review and updated as required. The Constitution sets out how the Council
operates, how decisions are made and the procedures to support the Council’s aims of being transparent and
accountable. The Constitution includes the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules, Financial
Procedure Rules and Contract and Procurement Procedure Rules and the Member Code of Conduct.

There are Overview and Scrutiny Committee arrangements in place to support the work of the Cabinet and the
Council as a whole. The committees have work programmes in place to steer their coverage of services and
policy decisions taken. The Constitution includes the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, which cover the
arrangements for call in of decisions. We have reviewed the Overview Committee’s minutes throughout the
year and not identified any concerns.

The Council’s Monitoring Officer has three main roles: To report on matters he/she believes are, or are likely to
be, illegal or amount to maladministration; To be responsible for matters relating to the conduct of Councillors
and officers; and To be responsible for the operation of the Constitution.

Regulators

There are few external regulators for district councils and we have not identified any matters reported which
indicate significant weaknesses in the Council’s governance arrangements, including a review of the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman’s (LGSCO) 2020/21 report.

Based on the above considerations we are satisfied there is not a significant weakness in the Council’s
arrangements in relation to governance.

P
age 58



3. VFM arrangements – Improving Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness

15

Introduction Audit of the financial statements Commentary on VFM arrangements Other reporting responsibilities and our fees

Performance Management

The Council’s Cabinet receive quarterly reporting on progress against the corporate plan. The Council’s budget
endeavours to ensure the provision of the appropriate resources required to deliver the Council’s Plan, and the
types of action necessary to enable them to be affordable, to allow balanced budgets to be delivered.

We have reviewed the year-end performance report provided to Cabinet. Our review of the report shows it is
sufficiently detailed to enable scrutiny and challenge. Our review of these documents confirms adequate
arrangements are in place to integrate service planning to the corporate plan as well as reporting progress
against said plan to Members and the wider public.

Partnerships

The plan to form a strategic alliance between Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey District Council was
considered by Councillors from both Authorities over June 2020. We read the proposal approved by Boston
Borough Council and the approved minutes.

Proposals estimate savings of around £1.8m per year once implemented (£15.45m over 10 years between the
Councils split 67% East Lindsey District Council and 33% Boston Borough Council based on population size)
and would start with the appointment of a Joint Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service, Joint Monitoring Officer
and Joint Section 151 Finance Officer (all statutory positions) before the wider joining of forces in other areas of
the Councils’ activity, including a shared Management Team. With regard to costs, Members have been
informed that these had been tested by external legal advisors.

In June 2020, the Council requested an amendment to the Memorandum of Agreement, which would provide
Boston Borough Council with the option of ending the Alliance after 12 months on the giving of three months’
notice; and the introduction of a Council Management Scrutiny Committee to scrutinise the evolution of the joint
management team and inform any future decisions related to the Alliance.

In August 2021, the South & East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership, between East Lindsey District Council,
Boston Borough Council and South Holland District Council - was agreed by all three member Councils. A
Memorandum of Agreement between all three councils was signed at the end of September, with the
Partnership officially coming into being from October 1, 2021.

Based on our review of the proposals, there is no indication of a significant weakness in arrangements for
2020/21.

Procurement

Financial regulations and procedures apply to all Members and employees in the work they do for the Council
and the Council has arrangements for financial instructions and purchase order controls. Our work on the
financial statements has not identified any significant internal control deficiencies.

Based on the above considerations we are satisfied there is not a significant weakness in the Council’s
arrangements in relation to improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

Overall commentary on the Improving Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness reporting criteria

P
age 59



Section 04:
Other reporting responsibilities and 
our fees

16

P
age 60



4. Other reporting responsibilities and our fees

Matters we report by exception

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 provides auditors with specific powers where matters come to our
attention that, in their judgement, require specific reporting action to be taken. Auditors have the power to:

• issue a report in the public interest;

• make statutory recommendations that must be considered and responded to publicly;

• apply to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to the law; and

• issue an advisory notice.

We have not exercised any of these statutory reporting powers.

The 2014 Act also gives rights to local electors and other parties, such as the right to ask questions of the
auditor and the right to make an objection to an item of account. We did not receive any such objections or
questions.

Reporting to the NAO in respect of Whole of Government Accounts
consolidation data

We have not yet received group instructions from the National Audit Office confirming their requirements in
relation to the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts. We are unable to issue our audit certificate until this is
formally confirmed.

17

Introduction Audit of the financial statements Commentary on VFM arrangements Other reporting responsibilities and our fees

P
age 61



Fees for work as the Council’s auditor

We reported our proposed fees for the delivery of our work under the Code of Audit Practice in our Audit Strategy Memorandum and Audit Completion Report. We expect our final audit fees to be as follows.

Fee variations subject to approval and confirmation by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.

4. Other reporting responsibilities and our fees

18

Introduction Audit of the financial statements Commentary on VFM arrangements Other reporting responsibilities and our fees

Fee variation category Definition 2019/20 2020/21 Recurrent to 2021/22?

Scale fee 33,961 33,961

Pension Valuation Additional work in relation to responding to increased regulatory challenge in auditing the IAS19 pension figures contained within 
the financial statements.

2,998 3,000 Yes

PPE Valuation Additional work in relation to responding to increased regulatory challenge in auditing the PPE figures contained within the 
financial statements.

3,196 3,200 Yes

Quality or preparation 
issues

Additional work in relation to delays, problems and/or issues experienced during the audit as a result of poor working 
papers/quality of responses, slow response times to requests or delayed/rescheduling of audit. This covers audit rescheduling, 
poor quality working papers, slow responses and the correction of material errors, prior period adjustments, and significant 
manager and partner time to resolve these.

- 13,500 No

VFM commentary See separate report which sets out the ranges for this work.
https://www.psaa.co.uk/additional-information-for-2020-21-audit-fees/

- 9,300 Yes

COVID-19 Additional work in relation to responding to the impact of Covid-19, both on the financial statements and performing of the audit. 
e.g. risk assessments/arrangement checklists performed, PPE/pensions valuations work undertaken (Emphasis of Matters), 
audits taking longer due to impact of remote working.

4,493 1,200 No

ISA540 See separate report which sets out the ranges for this work.
https://www.psaa.co.uk/additional-information-for-2020-21-audit-fees/

- 3,000 Yes

McCloud/ Goodwin Additional work in relation to responding to the McCloud legal ruling which had implications for pension schemes. 539 - No

Other Additional work in relation to any work that is not separately covered by the categories shown here.
Additional testing of Covid-19 grant income and expenditure 

- 3,180 Possible

Sub-total 11,226 36,380 -

Total 45,187 70,341 -

P
age 62

https://www.psaa.co.uk/additional-information-for-2020-21-audit-fees/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/additional-information-for-2020-21-audit-fees/


Mazars

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax 
and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the 
expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the 
Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.

*where permitted under applicable country laws.

2 Chamberlain Square,
Birmingham
B3 3AX

Mark Surridge, Director – Public Services
mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit Strategy Memorandum

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 4



01
02
03
04
05
06
07
08

Contents

Engagement and responsibilities summary
Your audit engagement team
Audit scope, approach and timeline
Significant risks and other key judgement areas
Value for money
Fees for audit and other services
Our commitment to independence
Materiality and misstatements

Appendix – Key communication points

This document is to be regarded as confidential to Boston Borough Council. It has been prepared for the sole use of the Audit and Governance Committee as the appropriate sub-committee charged with governance. No 
responsibility is accepted to any other person in respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a third party.

2

P
age 66



Audit and Governance Committee
Boston Borough Council
Municipal Buildings
West Street
Boston, Lincolnshire
PE21 8QR

6 May 2022

Dear Committee Members

Audit Strategy Memorandum – Year ending 31 March 2022 

We are pleased to present our Audit Strategy Memorandum for Boston Borough Council for the year ending 31 March 2022. The purpose of this document is to summarise our audit approach, highlight significant audit risks and 
areas of key judgements and provide you with the details of our audit team. As it is a fundamental requirement that an auditor is, and is seen to be, independent of its clients, section 7 of this document also summarises our 
considerations and conclusions on our independence as auditors. We consider two-way communication with you to be key to a successful audit and important in:

• reaching a mutual understanding of the scope of the audit and the responsibilities of each of us;

• sharing information to assist each of us to fulfil our respective responsibilities;

• providing you with constructive observations arising from the audit process; and

• ensuring that we, as external auditors, gain an understanding of your attitude and views in respect of the internal and external operational, financial, compliance and other risks facing Boston Borough Council which may affect 
the audit, including the likelihood of those risks materialising and how they are monitored and managed.

With that in mind, we see this document, which has been prepared following our initial planning discussions with management, as being the basis for a discussion around our audit approach, any questions, concerns or input you 
may have on our approach or role as auditor. This document also contains an appendix that outlines our key communications with you during the course of the audit,

Client service is extremely important to us and we strive to provide technical excellence with the highest level of service quality, together with continuous improvement to exceed your expectations so, if you have any concerns or 
comments about this document or audit approach, please contact me at mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk.

Yours faithfully

Mark Surridge

Mazars LLP

Mazars LLP
2 Chamberlain Square

Birmingham
B3 3AX

Mazars LLP – 2 Chamberlain Square, Birmingham, B3 3AX
Tel: 0121 232 9500 – www.mazars.co.uk
Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, 
London E1W 1DD.
We are registered to carry on audit work in the UK by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861. VAT number: 839 8356 73

P
age 67

mailto:mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk
http://www.mazars.co.uk/


Section 01:
Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

P
age 68



Value for money
We are also responsible for forming a commentary on the 
arrangements that the Council has in place to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We discuss our 
approach to Value for Money work further in section 5 of this report.

1. Engagement and responsibilities summary

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Audit opinion
We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the 
financial statements. Our audit does not relieve management or 
the Audit and Governance Committee, as those charged with 
governance, of their responsibilities.

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the assessment of 
whether is it appropriate for the Council to prepare its accounts on 
a going concern basis. As auditors, we are required to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding, and conclude on: 
a) whether a material uncertainty related to going concern exists; 
and b) consider the appropriateness of the Section 151 Officer’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of 
the financial statements.

Fraud
The responsibility for safeguarding assets and for the prevention and 
detection of fraud, error and non-compliance with law or regulations rests 
with both those charged with governance and management. This includes 
establishing and maintaining internal controls over reliability of financial 
reporting.

As part of our audit procedures in relation to fraud we are required to 
enquire of those charged with governance, including key management and 
Internal Audit as to their knowledge of instances of fraud, the risk of fraud 
and their views on internal controls that mitigate the fraud risks. In 
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), we plan and 
perform our audit so as to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 
caused by fraud or error. However, our audit should not be relied upon to 
identify all such misstatements.

Wider reporting and electors’ rights
We report to the NAO on the consistency of the Council’s financial 
statements with its Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) submission. 

The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the 
elector, the opportunity to question us about the accounting records of the 
Council and consider any objection made to the accounts. We also have a 
broad range of reporting responsibilities and powers that are unique to the 
audit of local authorities in the United Kingdom

5

Responsibilities

Overview of engagement
We are appointed to perform the external audit of Boston Borough Council (the Council) for the year to 31 March 2022. The scope of our engagement is set out in the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited 
Bodies, issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) available from the PSAA website: https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/. Our responsibilities 
are principally derived from the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office (NAO), as outlined below.

P
age 69

https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/


Section 02:
Your audit engagement team

P
age 70



mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk jon.machej@mazars.co.uk vikash.patel@mazars.co.uk

2. Your audit engagement team

Mark Surridge

Engagement Lead

Jon Machej

Engagement Manager

Vikash Patel

Engagement Assistant Manager

7

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 71

mailto:mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk
mailto:jon.machej@mazars.co.uk
mailto:Vikash.patel@mazars.co.uk


Section 03:
Audit scope, approach and timeline

8

P
age 72



3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

Audit scope
Our audit approach is designed to provide an audit that complies with all professional requirements.

Our audit of the financial statements will be conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), relevant ethical and professional standards, our own audit approach and in accordance with the terms of our 
engagement. Our work is focused on those aspects of your activities which we consider to have a higher risk of material misstatement, such as those impacted by management judgement and estimation, application of new 
accounting standards, changes of accounting policy, changes to operations or areas which have been found to contain material errors in the past.

Audit approach
Our audit approach is risk-based and primarily driven by the issues that we consider lead to a higher risk of material misstatement of the accounts. Once we have completed our risk assessment, we develop our audit strategy and 
design audit procedures in response to this assessment.

If we conclude that appropriately-designed controls are in place then we may plan to test and rely upon these controls. If we decide controls are not appropriately designed, or we decide it would be more efficient to do so, we may 
take a wholly substantive approach to our audit testing. Substantive procedures are audit procedures designed to detect material misstatements at the assertion level and comprise: tests of details (of classes of transactions, 
account balances, and disclosures); and substantive analytical procedures. Irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, which take into account our evaluation of the operating effectiveness of controls, we are 
required to design and perform substantive procedures for each material class of transactions, account balance, and disclosure.

Our audit will be planned and performed so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement and give a true and fair view. The concept of materiality and how we define a 
misstatement is explained in more detail in section 8.

The diagram on the next page outlines the procedures we perform at the different stages of the audit.

9

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 73



10

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

Planning March/April 2022
• Planning visit and developing our understanding of the Council
• Initial opinion and value for money risk assessments
• Considering proposed accounting treatments and accounting policies
• Developing the audit strategy and planning the audit work to be performed
• Agreeing timetable and deadlines
• Preliminary analytical review

Completion By November 2022
• Final review and disclosure checklist of financial statements
• Final partner review
• Agreeing content of letter of representation
• Reporting to the Audit and Governance Committee
• Reviewing subsequent events
• Signing the auditor’s report

Interim March 2022
• Documenting systems and controls
• Performing walkthroughs
• Interim controls testing including tests of IT general controls
• Early substantive testing of transactions
• Reassessment of audit plan and revision if necessary

Fieldwork September/October 2022
• Receiving and reviewing draft financial statements
• Reassessment of audit plan and revision if necessary
• Executing the strategy starting with significant risks and high risk areas
• Communicating progress and issues
• Updating VFM Risk Assessment
• Clearance meeting

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 74



11

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

Reliance on internal audit
Where possible we will seek to utilise the work performed by internal audit to modify the nature, extent and timing of our audit procedures. We will meet with internal audit to discuss the progress and findings of their work prior to 
the commencement of our controls evaluation procedures.

Where we intend to rely on the work on internal audit, we will evaluate the work performed by your internal audit team and perform our own audit procedures to determine its adequacy for our audit.

Management’s and our experts
Management makes use of experts in specific areas when preparing the Council’s financial statements. We also use experts to assist us to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on specific items of account.

Item of account Management’s expert Our expert

Property, plant and 
equipment 

Kier Business Services Ltd.

The Council’s external valuer
None

Pensions 
Barnett Waddingham

Actuary for Lincolnshire Pension 
Fund

PwC LLP

Consulting actuary appointed by the 
NAO

Financial instrument 
disclosures

Link Asset Services

Treasury management advisors
None

Business rate appeals 
provision

InformCPI Ltd.

The Council’s rating specialist
None

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 75



Section 04:
Significant risks and other key 
judgement areas

12

P
age 76



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Following the risk assessment approach discussed in section 3 of this document, we have identified risks 
relevant to the audit of financial statements. The risks that we identify are categorised as significant, enhanced 
or standard. The definitions of the level of risk rating are given below:

Significant risk
A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor’s judgment, 
requires special audit consideration. For any significant risk, the auditor shall obtain an understanding of the 
entity’s controls, including control activities relevant to that risk.

Enhanced risk
An enhanced risk is an area of higher assessed risk of material misstatement at audit assertion level other than 
a significant risk. Enhanced risks require additional consideration but does not rise to the level of a significant 
risk, these include but may not be limited to:

• key areas of management judgement, including accounting estimates which are material but are not 
considered to give rise to a significant risk of material misstatement; and

• other audit assertion risks arising from significant events or transactions that occurred during the period.

Standard risk
This is related to relatively routine, non-complex transactions that tend to be subject to systematic processing 
and require little management judgement. Although it is considered that there is a risk of material misstatement 
(RMM), there are no elevated or special factors related to the nature, the likely magnitude of the potential 
misstatements or the likelihood of the risk occurring. 

Areas of audit focus

Where we identify a material item of account or aspect of financial reporting that represents a challenge to the 
Trust, we will highlight to the Audit and Risk Committee as one where we will focus our audit attention.

13

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Summary risk assessment
The summary risk assessment, illustrated in the table below, highlights those risks which we deem to be significant 
and other enhanced risks in respect of the Council. We have summarised our audit response to these risks on the 
next page.

Key:            Significant risk Enhanced risk / significant management judgement

3
2

1

H
igh

HighLow

Low

Likelihood

Financial im
pact

1.  Management override of controls

2.  Valuation of the net defined benefit liability

3.  Valuation of land and building assets held at
valuation

P
age 77



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Specific identified audit risks and planned testing strategy
We have presented below in more detail the reasons for the risk assessment highlighted above, and also our testing approach with respect to significant risks. An audit is a dynamic process, should we change our view of risk or 
approach to address the identified risks during the course of our audit, we will report this to the Audit and Governance Committee.

Significant risks

Description Fraud Error Judgement Planned response

1 Management override of controls 

This is a mandatory significant risk on all audits due to the 
unpredictable way in which such override could occur.

Management at various levels within an organisation are in a unique 
position to perpetrate fraud because of their ability to manipulate 
accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by 
overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 
Due to the unpredictable way in which such override could occur 
there is a risk of material misstatement due to fraud on 
all audits.

We plan to address the management override of controls risk through 
performing audit work over accounting estimates, journal entries and 
significant transactions outside the normal course of business or otherwise 
unusual.

14

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 78



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Significant risks (continued)

Description Fraud Error Judgement Planned response

2 Net defined benefit liability valuation

The defined benefit liability relating to the Local Government 
pension scheme represents a significant balance on the Council’s 
balance sheet.

The Council uses an actuary to provide an annual valuation of these 
liabilities in line with the requirements of IAS 19 Employee Benefits.
Due to the high degree of estimation uncertainty associated with this 
valuation, we have determined there is a significant risk in this area.

We plan to address the risk by:

• assessing the competency, objectivity and independence of the 
Lincolnshire Pension Fund’s Actuary, Barnett Waddingham;

• liaising with the auditors of the Lincolnshire Pension Fund to gain 
assurance that the controls in place at the Pension Fund are designed 
effectively. This will include the processes and controls in place to ensure 
data provided to the Actuary by the Pension Fund for the purposes of the 
IAS 19 valuation is complete and accurate;

• reviewing the appropriateness of the Pension Asset and Liability valuation 
methodologies applied by the Pension Fund Actuary, and the key 
assumptions included within the valuation. This will include comparing 
them to expected ranges, utilising information by the consulting actuary 
engaged by the National Audit Office; and

• agreeing the data in the IAS 19 valuation report provided by the Fund 
Actuary for accounting purposes to the pension accounting entries and 
disclosures in the Council’s financial statements.

15

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 79



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Significant risks (continued)

Description Fraud Error Judgement Planned response

3 Valuation of land and building assets held at valuation

The Council’s accounts contain material balances and disclosures 
relating to its holding of land and buildings within the caption of 
property, plant and equipment, as well as investment properties and 
assets held for sale, with the majority required to be carried at 
valuation.

The valuation of these assets is complex and is subject to a number 
of management assumptions and judgements.

Due to the high degree of estimation uncertainty associated, we 
have determined there is a significant risk in this area.

We plan to address this risk by:

• assessing the Council’s valuers scope of work, qualifications, objectivity 
and independence to carry out the required programme of revaluations;

• considering whether the overall revaluation methodologies used by the 
Council’s valuers are in line with industry practice, the CIPFA code of 
practice and the Council’s accounting policies; 

• assessing whether valuation movements are in line with market 
expectations by considering valuation trends; and

• assessing the approach that the Council adopts to ensure that assets that 
are not subject to revaluation in 2021/22 are materially correct, including 
considering the robustness of that approach in light of the valuation 
information reported by the Councils valuers.

16

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 80



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Areas of audit focus

17

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Description Planned response

Implementation of new payroll system

In 2021/22, the Council implemented a new payroll system. When implementing a new significant 
financial system, it is important to ensure that sufficient controls have been designed and operate 
to ensure the integrity of the data. There is also a risk over the completeness and accuracy of the 
data transfer from the previous payroll system. 

We therefore identified the completeness and accuracy of the transfer of financial information to 
the new payroll system as a risk.

We plan to address this risk by:

• gaining an understanding of the procedures used by the Council to ensure the effectiveness of the new payroll system;

• reviewing the controls the Council has put in place to ensure the accurate transfer of data from the previous system;

• gaining an understanding of the Council’s system for accounting for payroll expenditure and evaluating the design of 
the associated controls; and

• ensuring that the Council has accurately reconciled the payroll expenditure reported in the financial statements to total 
expenditure recorded in the payroll system.P

age 81



Section 05:
Value for money

18

P
age 82



19

5. Value for money

The framework for Value for Money work
We are required to form a view as to whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAO issues guidance to auditors that 
underpins the work we are required to carry out in order to form our view, and sets out the overall criterion 
and sub-criteria that we are required to consider. 

2021/22 will be the second audit year where we are undertaking our value for money (VFM) work under the 
2020 Code of Audit Practice (the Code). Our responsibility remains to be satisfied that the Council has 
proper arrangements in place and to report in the audit report and/or the audit completion certificate where 
we identify significant weaknesses in arrangements. Separately we provide a commentary on the Council’s 
arrangements in the Auditor’s Annual Report. 

Specified reporting criteria
The Code requires us to structure our commentary to report under three specified criteria:

1. Financial sustainability – how the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue 
to deliver its services

2. Governance – how the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its 
risks

3. Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness – how the Council uses information about its costs 
and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services

Our approach
Our work falls into three primary phases as outlined opposite. We need to gather sufficient evidence to 
support our commentary on the Council’s arrangements and to identify and report on any significant 
weaknesses in arrangements. Where significant weaknesses are identified we are required to report these 
to the Council and make recommendations for improvement. Such recommendations can be made at any 
point during the audit cycle and we are not expected to wait until issuing our overall commentary to do so.

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Planning and risk 
assessment

Obtaining an understanding of the Council’s arrangements for each 
specified reporting criteria. Relevant information sources will include:
• NAO guidance and supporting information
• Information from internal and external sources including regulators
• Knowledge from previous audits and other audit work undertaken in the 

year
• Interviews and discussions with staff and members.

Additional risk 
based 

procedures and 
evaluation

Reporting

Where our planning work identifies risks of significant weaknesses, we will 
undertake additional procedures to determine whether there is a significant 
weakness.

We will provide a summary of the work we have undertaken and our 
judgements against each of the specified reporting criteria as part of our 
commentary on arrangements. This will form part of the Auditor’s Annual 
Report.
Our commentary will also highlight:
• Significant weaknesses identified and our recommendations for 

improvement
• Emerging issues or other matters that do not represent significant 

weaknesses but still require attention from the Council. 

P
age 83



20

5. Value for money

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Identified risks of significant weaknesses in arrangements
We reported our 2020/21 VFM commentary in the Annual Auditor’s Report issued to the Council in April 2022. We reported that we had not identified any risks of, or actual, significant weaknesses in the Council’s VFM 
arrangements and there were no recommendations arising from our work. We have not fully completed our 2021/22 planning and risk assessment work at this stage, which will cover the South & East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership, but have so far not identified any risks of, or actual, significant weaknesses. 

We will, if necessary, report any identified risks or weaknesses to the Audit and Governance Committee on completion of our planning and risk identification work.

P
age 84



Section 06:
Fees for audit and other services

21

P
age 85



Fees for work as the Council’s appointed auditor
Details of the 2020/21 actual and planned 2021/22 fees are set out below:

The specific 2020/21 fee variations are subject to PSAA approval.

The 2021/22 proposed fee variations are subject to change and any variations will be discussed with management prior to seeking PSAA approval.

Area of work 2021/22 Proposed Fee 2020/21 Actual Fee

Scale audit fee £33,961 £33,961

Fee variations:

Additional work in relation to responding to increased regulatory challenge in auditing the IAS19 pension 
figures contained within the financial statements £3,500 1 £3,000 

Additional work in relation to responding to increased regulatory challenge in auditing the PPE figures 
contained within the financial statements £3,500 1 £3,200

Additional testing as a result of the implementation of new auditing standards £3,000 2 £3,000

Additional testing as a result of a new significant audit risk relating to Covid-19 grants - £3,180

Other additional testing - additional testing and reporting in 2020/21 on uncertainties in key estimates as 
a result of Covid-19 - £1,200

Additional work as a result of the new Code of Audit Practice and VFM reporting £9,000 3 £9,300

Additional work in relation to delays, problems and/or issues experienced during the audit as a result of 
poor working papers/quality of responses, slow response times to requests or delayed/rescheduling of 
audit

- £13,500

Additional work as a result of the implementation of a new payroll system £2,000 4

Total £54,961 5 £70,341 6

6. Fees for audit and other services

22

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

1 As previously reported to you, the scale fee has been adjusted to 
take into account the additional work required as a result of 
increased regulatory expectations over these areas.

2 As previously reported to you, the scale fee has been adjusted to 
take into account the additional work required as a result of the 
introduction in 2020/21 of two new auditing standards incurring 
additional time and audit work not reflected in the scale fee.

3 As previously reported to you, the scale fee has been adjusted to 
take into account the additional work to support our reporting on the 
Council’s value for money arrangements following the change to 
the NAO Code of Practice in 2020/21. This fee is based on there 
being no significant risks in the Council’s arrangements. The final 
fee taking into account the extent, and complexity of, any significant 
weaknesses in arrangements.

4 These are the expected additional costs arising from the need to 
undertake additional testing in respect of the Council’s 
implementation of a new payroll system.

5 This is a proposed fee for 2021/22 at the point of the issue of our 
Audit Strategy Memorandum. This figure is subject to change with 
any additional costs being discussed with management.

6 The additional audit costs in 2020/21 have been disclosed within 
our Auditors Annual Report, issued in April 2022.

P
age 86



Section 07:
Our commitment to independence

23

P
age 87



7. Our commitment to independence

We are committed to independence and are required by the Financial Reporting Council to confirm to you at 
least annually in writing that we comply with the FRC’s Ethical Standard. In addition, we communicate any 
matters or relationship which we believe may have a bearing on our independence or the objectivity of the 
audit team.

Based on the information provided by you and our own internal procedures to safeguard our independence as 
auditors, we confirm that in our professional judgement there are no relationships between us and any of our 
related or subsidiary entities, and you and your related entities creating any unacceptable threats to our 
independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your auditors.

We have policies and procedures in place which are designed to ensure that we carry out our work with 
integrity, objectivity and independence. These policies include:

• all partners and staff are required to complete an annual independence declaration;

• all new partners and staff are required to complete an independence confirmation and also complete 
computer based ethical training;

• rotation policies covering audit engagement partners and other key members of the audit team; and

• use by managers and partners of our client and engagement acceptance system which requires all non-
audit services to be approved in advance by the audit engagement partner.

We confirm, as at the date of this document, that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, 
Mazars LLP are independent and comply with relevant ethical requirements. However, if at any time you have 
concerns or questions about our integrity, objectivity or independence please discuss these with Mark Surridge 
in the first instance.

Prior to the provision of any non-audit services Mark Surridge will undertake appropriate procedures to consider 
and fully assess the impact that providing the service may have on our auditor independence.

Any emerging independence threats and associated identified safeguards will be communicated in our Audit 
Completion Report.

24

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 88



Section 08:
Materiality and misstatements

25

P
age 89



8. Materiality and misstatements

Summary of initial materiality thresholds

* Reflecting movement from one salary band to another

Materiality
Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in the context of 
financial statements as a whole.

Misstatements in financial statements are considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial 
statements. 

Judgements on materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by the size and 
nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both. Judgements about materiality are based on consideration of 
the common financial information needs of users as a group and not on specific individual users.

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by our perception of 
the financial information needs of the users of the financial statements. In making our assessment we assume 
that users:

• have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts; 

• have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

• understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of materiality;

• recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of estimates, 
judgement and the consideration of future events; and

• will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements.

We consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit based on quantitative and qualitative factors. 

Whilst planning, we make judgements about the size of misstatements which we consider to be material and which 
provides a basis for determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures, identifying and 
assessing the risk of material misstatement and determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures.

The materiality determined at the planning stage does not necessarily establish an amount below which 
uncorrected misstatements, either individually or in aggregate, will be considered as immaterial. 

We revise materiality for the financial statements as our audit progresses should we become aware of 
information that would have caused us to determine a different amount had we been aware of that information 
at the planning stage.

Our provisional materiality is set based on a benchmark of total gross expenditure. We will identify a figure for 
materiality but identify separate levels for procedures designed to detect individual errors, and also a level 
above which all identified errors will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee.

We consider that the total gross expenditure remains the key focus of users of the financial statements and, as 
such, we base our materiality levels around this benchmark. 

26

Threshold Initial threshold 
£’000s

Overall materiality 900

Performance materiality 675

Trivial threshold for errors to be reported to the Audit and 
Governance Committee

27

Specific materiality:

Note 33 - Officer remuneration 5*

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 90



8. Materiality and misstatements

Materiality (continued)
We expect to set a materiality threshold at 2% of total gross expenditure. Based on the prior year’s audited 
financial statements we anticipate the overall materiality for the year ending 31 March 2022 to be in the region 
of £900k (£880k in the prior year).

After setting initial materiality, we continue to monitor materiality throughout the audit to ensure that it is set at 
an appropriate level.

Performance Materiality
Performance materiality is the amount or amounts set by the auditor at less than materiality for the financial 
statements as a whole to reduce, to an appropriately low level, the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected 
and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality for the financial statements as a whole. In setting 
performance materiality we have taken into account that this is our fourth year of audit, and we have cumulative 
audit knowledge about the Council’s financial statements. Given the increased number of significant matters 
arising in the prior year, we have set our performance materiality at 75% (80% in the prior year) of our overall 
materiality being £675k (£700k in the prior year).

Misstatements
We accumulate misstatements identified during the audit that are other than clearly trivial. We set a level of 
triviality for individual errors identified (a reporting threshold) for reporting to the Audit and Governance 
Committee that is consistent with the level of triviality that we consider would not need to be accumulated 
because we expect that the accumulation of such amounts would not have a material effect on the financial 
statements. Based on our preliminary assessment of overall materiality, our proposed triviality threshold is 
£27k, based on 3% of overall materiality. If you have any queries about this please do not hesitate to raise 
these with Mark Surridge.

Reporting to the Audit and Governance Committee
The following three types of audit differences above the trivial threshold will be presented to the Audit and 
Governance Committee:

• summary of adjusted audit differences;

• summary of unadjusted audit differences; and 

• summary of disclosure differences (adjusted and unadjusted).

27

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 91



Appendix: Key communication points
A

28

P
age 92



Appendix: Key communication points

We value communication with Those Charged With Governance as a two way feedback process at the heart of 
our client service commitment. ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’ and ISA 
265 (UK) ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And 
Management’ specifically require us to communicate a number of points with you.

Relevant points that need to be communicated with you at each stage of the audit are outlined below.

Form, timing and content of our communications
We will present the following reports:

• Audit Strategy Memorandum;

• Audit Completion Report; and

• Auditor’s Annual Report

These documents will be discussed with management prior to being presented to yourselves and their 
comments will be incorporated as appropriate.

Key communication points at the planning stage as included in this Audit 
Strategy Memorandum
• Our responsibilities in relation to the audit of the financial statements;

• The planned scope and timing of the audit;

• Significant audit risks and areas of management judgement;

• Our commitment to independence;

• Responsibilities for preventing and detecting errors;

• Materiality and misstatements; and

• Fees for audit and other services.

Key communication points at the completion stage to be included in our 
Audit Completion Report
• Significant deficiencies in internal control;

• Significant findings from the audit;

• Significant matters discussed with management;

• Our conclusions on the significant audit risks and areas of 
management judgement;

• Summary of misstatements;

• Management representation letter;

• Our proposed draft audit report; and

• Independence.

29

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 93



30

Appendix: Key communication points

ISA (UK) 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’, ISA (UK) 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And Management’ and other ISAs (UK) specifically require 
us to communicate the following:

Required communication Where addressed

Our responsibilities in relation to the financial statement audit and those of management and those charged 
with governance.

Audit Strategy Memorandum

The planned scope and timing of the audit including any limitations, specifically including with respect to 
significant risks.

Audit Strategy Memorandum

With respect to misstatements:
• uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion;
• the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods;
• a request that any uncorrected misstatement is corrected; and
• in writing, corrected misstatements that are significant.

Audit Completion Report

With respect to fraud communications:
• enquiries of the Audit and Governance Committee to determine whether they have a knowledge of any 

actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity;
• any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that fraud may exist; and
• a discussion of any other matters related to fraud.

Audit Completion Report and discussion at the Audit and Governance Committee, 
Audit planning and clearance meetings

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 94



31

Appendix: Key communication points

Required communication Where addressed

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties including, 
when applicable:
• non-disclosure by management;
• inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions;
• disagreement over disclosures;
• non-compliance with laws and regulations; and
• difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity.

Audit Completion Report

Significant findings from the audit including:
• our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, 

accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
• significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;
• significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management or were the subject 

of correspondence with management;
• written representations that we are seeking;
• expected modifications to the audit report; and
• other matters, if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process or otherwise identified in the 

course of the audit that we believe will be relevant to the Audit and Governance Committee in the context of 
fulfilling their responsibilities.

Audit Completion Report

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit Completion Report

Where relevant, any issues identified with respect to authority to obtain external confirmations or inability to 
obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

Audit Completion Report

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 95



32

Appendix: Key communication points

Required communication Where addressed

Audit findings regarding non-compliance with laws and regulations where the non-compliance is material and 
believed to be intentional (subject to compliance with legislation on tipping off) and enquiry of the Audit and 
Governance Committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that may have a 
material effect on the financial statements and that the Audit and Governance Committee may be aware of.

Audit Completion Report and the Audit and Governance Committee meetings

With respect to going concern, events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, including:
• whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty;
• whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and presentation of the 

financial statements; and
• the adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements.

Audit Completion Report

Reporting on the valuation methods applied to the various items in the annual or consolidated financial 
statements including any impact of changes of such methods

Audit Completion Report 

Explanation of the scope of consolidation and the exclusion criteria applied by the entity to the non-consolidated 
entities, if any, and whether those criteria applied are in accordance with the relevant financial reporting 
framework.

Audit Strategy Memorandum and/or Audit Completion Report as appropriate

Where applicable, identification of any audit work performed by component auditors in relation to the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements other than by Mazars’ member firms

Audit Strategy Memorandum and/or Audit Completion Report as appropriate

Indication of whether all requested explanations and documents were provided by the entity Audit Completion Report 

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 96



Mazars

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax 
and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the 
expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the 
Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.

*where permitted under applicable country laws.

2 Chamberlain Square
Birmingham
B3 3AX

Mark Surridge, Director – Public Services

P
age 97



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

REPORT TO: Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 18th July 2022 

SUBJECT: Annual Treasury Management Review 2021/22 

KEY DECISION: 

  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

N/A 

 

Councillor Noble 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

Sean Howsam (Interim Treasury & Investments Manager PSPS) 

 

N/A 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

Attached at Appendix A is the Annual Treasury Management Review of the Council’s activities 

and actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2021/22. It covers the following areas; 

 • An economic update for the 2021/22 financial year;  

•  A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2021/22; 

 • A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2021/22; 

 • Debt position;  

•  Compliance with Treasury and Prudential indicators.  

This Report refers to a key element of the Council’s Governance Framework and represents an 

important contribution to the evidence trail in support of the Annual Governance Statement 

2021/22. 

 

 

Page 99

Agenda Item 5



2 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
It is recommended that Members of the Audit and Governance Committee consider and 

approve the contents of the report attached at Appendix A. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Council is required to produce an Annual Treasury Management Review after the end of 

each financial year in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

As this is an update report there are no other further options for consideration. 

 

REPORT 

1.1 The Council approved its Treasury Management Strategy for 2021/22 on 1st March 2021. 
This report now provides the Annual Treasury Management Review 2021/22 for scrutiny 
and approval. (Appendix A). 
 

1.2 Capital expenditure for 2021/22 was £2m which was fully financed by grants and internal 
resources. 
 

1.3 As at 31 March 2022, treasury investment balances were £24.8m compared with £17.7m 
the previous year and non-treasury investment balances were £22.5m compared with 
£19.7m the previous year. All treasury investments will mature in less than one year and 
the non treasury investments are long term investments in property funds. 
 

1.4 A full review of the economy and interest rates is detailed in Section 8 of Appendix ‘A’ 
 

1.5 The rate of return on the Council’s investments averaged 1.74% for the 2021/22 financial 
year. The net amount of interest earned was £775k after fees against a budget of £820k. 
The Council paid interest totalling £494k on its borrowing for the year. 
 

1.6 The Council’s property fund investments made a net contribution to the Council’s 2021/22 
revenue account of £744k and the combined Net Asset Value of the funds rose by 6.9% 
from the 31 March 2021 valuations. A full analysis of the Council’s property fund 
investments can be found in Section 9 of Appendix `A `. 
 

1.7 The Council’s Investment Policy and Strategy is kept under constant review with the aim of 
balancing risk and reward. The investment criteria agreed for 2021/22 permitted 
investments with banks whose parent bank originates from a country with a sovereign 
rating of A+ or higher and meets Link Groups counterparty investment criteria. 
 

1.8 The Council is currently in the process of producing its accounts for 2021/22 which may 
result in some amendments to the figures being reported in this Annual Report. 

Page 100



3 
 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
This report provides a review of treasury management performance for the financial year 2021/22, 

to Members to ensure Best Practice is maintained as required by CIPFA Code of Practice for 

Treasury Management. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The financial implications are covered in detail in Appendix A to this report.  
 
By making the investment criteria relating to financial institutions stringent, the Council receives 
lower rates of return. The Council therefore aims to strike a balance between risk and reward 
when considering its portfolio of investments. Treasury Management is a key financial 
consideration for the Authority especially in respect of its investment returns and Capital 
Programme. 
 
During 2021/22 interest earned was £775k which was £45k below the original estimate for the 
year of £820k. Interest paid on borrowing was £494k in line with the budget of £494k.  

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

The council is required to produce an Annual Treasury Management Review after the end of 

each financial year in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

Management of the Council’s investments portfolios can never be risk free but the risk 

mediation in place under policies and statements mitigates the exposure to medium risk. 

Page 101



4 
 

 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A - Annual Treasury Management Review 2021/22 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on 

Treasury Management. 

CIPFA website 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body for the current 

financial year. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Sean Howsam – Interim Treasury & Investments 

Manager (PSPSL) Sean.Howsam@pspsl.co.uk 

Signed off by: Samantha Knowles, Assistant Director Finance 

SKnowles@sholland.gov.uk 

Approved for publication: Councillor Noble Portfolio Holder for Finance 

 

 

CONSULTATION 

The Portfolio Holder for Finance is briefed on treasury performance on a regular basis as part 

of the monthly portfolio meetings. 

Page 102

mailto:Sean.Howsam@pspsl.co.uk
mailto:SKnowles@sholland.gov


APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Boston Borough Council 
 
 

Annual Treasury Management Review 2021/22 

 

For scrutiny by Audit and Governance Committee  

on 18th July 2022 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 103



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

 

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 2021/22 
 

  

1. INTRODUCTION 

 
This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 

2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the 
actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2021/22.  This report meets the 
requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, (the 

Code), and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, 
(the Prudential Code). 

 
During 2021/22 the following reports have been submitted: 

• an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 1st March 2021)  

• a mid year (minimum) treasury update report (Audit and Governance 8th 
November 2021) 

• an annual review following the end of the year describing the activity 
compared to the strategy (this report)  

In addition, this Council has received quarterly treasury management update 

reports on 20 September 2021 and 28 March 2022 which were received by the 
Audit and Governance Committee. 
 

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and 
scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities.  This report is therefore 
important in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for 

treasury activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s policies previously 
approved by members. 

 
This Council also confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the 
Code to give prior scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports by 

the Audit and Governance Committee.  Member training on treasury 
management has not been undertaken during the year however property fund 

manager presentations have been provided during the year in order to support 
Members’ scrutiny role. 
 

The Treasury Management function is administered by Public Sector Partnership 
Services Ltd on behalf of the Council.  

  
2. THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING 2021/22 

 

The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets.  These activities 
may either be: 

• financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue 
resources (capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), 

which has no resultant impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or 

• if insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply 
resources, the capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.   

  

Page 104



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators.   

The following table summarises actual capital expenditure and how this was 

financed.  Full details of the 2021/22 expenditure can be found at Appendix 
‘A1’. 

 

£’000 General Fund 2020/21 
Actual 

2021/22 
Approved 

Budget 

2021/22 
Actual 

Capital expenditure 3,437 5,593 2,047 

Financed in year (3,437) (5,593) (2,047) 

Unfinanced capital expenditure 0 0 0 

 

 
3. THE COUNCIL’S OVERALL BORROWING NEED 
 

The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the 
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  This figure is a gauge of the Council’s 

indebtedness. The CFR results from the capital activity of the Council and 
resources used to pay for the capital spend.  It represents the 2021/22 
unfinanced capital expenditure (see above table), and prior years’ net or 

unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for by revenue or 
other resources. 

 
Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address the funding requirements for 
this borrowing need.  Depending on the capital expenditure programme, the 

treasury service organises the Council’s cash position to ensure that sufficient 
cash is available to meet the capital plans and cash flow requirements.  This may 

be sourced through borrowing from external bodies (such as the Government, 
through the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) or the money markets), or utilising 
temporary cash resources within the Council. 

 
Reducing the CFR – the Council’s underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not 

allowed to rise indefinitely.  Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital 
assets are broadly charged to revenue over the life of the asset.  The Council is 
required to make an annual revenue charge, called the Minimum Revenue 

Provision – MRP, to reduce the CFR.  This is effectively a repayment of the 
borrowing need. This differs from the treasury management arrangements which 

ensure that cash is available to meet capital commitments.  External debt can 
also be borrowed or repaid at any time, but this does not change the CFR. 
 

The total CFR can also be reduced by: 
 

• the application of additional capital financing resources, (such as unapplied 
capital receipts); or  

• charging more than the statutory revenue charge (MRP) each year through a 

Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP). 
  

The Council’s 2021/22 MRP Policy, (as required by Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) Guidance), was approved as part 

of the Treasury Management Strategy Report for 2021/22 on 1st March 2021.  

Page 105



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

The Council’s CFR is shown below, and represents a key prudential indicator.   
 

CFR (£’000) 31 March 
2021  

Actual 

31 March 
2022 

Estimate 

31 March 
2022  

Actual 

Opening CFR Balance  20,369 20,304 20,304 

Add Unfinanced Capital Expenditure 0 0 0 

Minimum Revenue Provision (65) (15) (30) 

Total CFR 20,304 20,289 20,274 

 

Borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators for gross borrowing and 
the CFR, and by the authorised limit. 

 
Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are 
prudent over the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Council should 

ensure that its gross external borrowing does not, except in the short term, 
exceed the total of the capital financing requirement in the preceding year 

(2020/21) plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for 
the current (2021/22) and next two financial years.  This essentially means that 

the Council is not borrowing to support revenue expenditure.  This indicator 
allows the Council some flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital 
needs in 2021/22.  The table below highlights the Council’s gross borrowing 

position against the CFR.  The Council has complied with this prudential indicator. 
 

 31 March 
2021  

Actual 
£000’s 

31 March 
2022  

Estimate 
£000’s 

31 March 
2022  

Actual 
£000’s 

Gross Borrowing Position  16,449 16,449 16,449 

CFR 20,304 20,289 20,274 

 
 
The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” 

required by S3 of the Local Government Act 2003.  Once this has been set, the 
Council does not have the power to borrow above this level.  The table below 

demonstrates that during 2021/22 the Council has maintained gross borrowing 
within its authorised limit.  
 

The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected 
borrowing position of the Council during the year.  Periods where the actual 

position is either below or over the boundary is acceptable subject to the 
authorised limit not being breached.  

  

Page 106



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

 
Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this 

indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term 
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 
 

 2021/22 

Authorised limit £25m 

Maximum gross borrowing position    £16.4m 

Operational boundary £22m 

Average gross borrowing position    £16.4m 

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream -4.50% 

 

 
4. TREASURY POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2022 

 
The Council’s debt and investment position is organised by the treasury 
management service in order to ensure adequate liquidity for revenue and capital 

activities, security for investments and to manage risks within all treasury 
management activities. Procedures and controls to achieve these objectives are 

well established both through member reporting and through officer activity 
detailed in the Council’s Treasury Management Practices. At the beginning and 
the end of 2021/22 the Council’s treasury position including accrued interest was 

as follows: 
 

 

Investments and Cash and Cash Equivalents held as at 31st March 2022 
including accrued interest were as follows: 

  

 
 

31/3/21 

Principal & 

Accrued 

Interest 

£000’s 

Rate/ 

Return 

% 

Average 

Life 

 In 

Years 

31/3/22 

Principal & 

Accrued 

Interest 

£000’s 

Rate/ 

Return 

% 

Average 

Life 

In  

Years 

Fixed Rate External & 
PWLB borrowing  

16,449 3.92 46.67 16,449 3.92 45.67 

CFR 20,304   20,274   

Over/(under) 
borrowing 

(3,855)   (3,825)   

Total investments 
(including Cash and 
Cash Equivalents) 

(37,360) 1.82 0.62 (47,213) 1.68 0.55 

Net investments (20,911)   (30,764)   

Page 107



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

INVESTMENT 
PORTFOLIO 

Actual 
31/03/21 

£000’s 

Actual 
31/03/21 

% 

Actual 
31/03/22 

£000’s 

Actual 
31/03/22 

% 

Treasury Investments 

Banks 14,699 83 21,754 88 

Local Authorities - - - - 

Total managed in house 14,699 83 21,754 88 

Money Market Funds 3,000 17 3,001 12 

Total managed 

externally 

3,000 17 3,001 12 

Total Treasury 

Investments 

17,699 100 24,755 100 

Non Treasury Investments 

Property Funds 19,661 100 22,458 100 

Total Non Treasury 

Investments 

19,661 100 22,458 100 

Note: The value of Property Fund investments have increased during the financial 

year. No new investments have been made in this investment type in 2021/22. 

 

SUMMARY Actual 
31/03/21 

£000’s 

Actual 
31/03/21 

% 

Actual 
31/03/22 

£000’s 

Actual 
31/03/22 

% 

Total Treasury 
Investments 

17,699 47 24,755 52 

Total Non Treasury 
Investments 

19,661 53 22,458 48 

Total of all Investments 37,360 100 47,213 100 

 

 

The maturity structure of the investment portfolio was as follows: 

 2020/21 
Actual 

£’000 

2021/22 
Actual 

£’000 

Investments 

  Longer than 1 year 
  Under 1 year 

       Total 

 

19,661 
17,699 
37,360 

 

22,458 
24,755 
47,213 

 

  

Page 108



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

The exposure to fixed and variable rates on investments was as follows: 

 31/3/21 

Actual 
£’000 

31/3/22 

Actual 
£’000 

Fixed rate  
0 

(0%) 

0 

(0%) 

Variable rate  
37,360 

(100%) 

47,213 

(100%) 

 

5. THE STRATEGY FOR 2021/22 

 
5.1    Investment strategy and control of interest rate risk 
 

 
 
Investment returns remained close to zero for much of 2021/22.  Most local 
authority lending managed to avoid negative rates and one feature of the year 

was the continued growth of inter local authority lending.  The expectation for 
interest rates within the treasury management strategy for 2021/22 was that 

Bank Rate would remain at 0.1% until it was clear to the Bank of England that 
the emergency level of rates introduced at the start of the Covid-19 pandemic 

were no longer necessitated. 
 
The Bank of England and the Government also maintained various monetary and 

fiscal measures, supplying the banking system and the economy with massive 
amounts of cheap credit so that banks could help cash-starved businesses to 

survive the various lockdowns/negative impact on their cashflow. The 
Government also supplied huge amounts of finance to local authorities to pass on 
to businesses.  This meant that for most of the year there was much more 

Page 109



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

liquidity in financial markets than there was demand to borrow, with the 
consequent effect that investment earnings rates remained low until towards the 

turn of the year when inflation concerns indicated central banks, not just the 
Bank of England, would need to lift interest rates to combat the second-round 
effects of growing levels of inflation (CPI was 6.2% in February).  

 
While the Council has taken a cautious approach to investing, it is also fully 

appreciative of changes to regulatory requirements for financial institutions in 
terms of additional capital and liquidity that came about in the aftermath of the 
financial crisis. These requirements have provided a far stronger basis for 

financial institutions, with annual stress tests by regulators evidencing how 
institutions are now far more able to cope with extreme stressed market and 

economic conditions. 
 
Investment balances have been kept to a minimum through the agreed strategy 

of using reserves and balances to support internal borrowing, rather than 
borrowing externally from the financial markets. External borrowing would have 

incurred an additional cost, due to the differential between borrowing and 
investment rates as illustrated in the charts shown above and below. Such an 

approach has also provided benefits in terms of reducing counterparty risk 
exposure, by having fewer investments placed in the financial markets.  
 

5.2      Borrowing strategy and control of interest rate risk 
 

During 2021/22, the Council maintained an under-borrowed position.  This meant 
that the capital borrowing need, (the Capital Financing Requirement), was not 
fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances 

and cash flow was used as an interim measure. This strategy was prudent as 
investment returns were very low and minimising counterparty risk on placing 

investments also needed to be considered. 
 
A cost of carry remained during the year on any new long-term borrowing that 

was not immediately used to finance capital expenditure, as it would have caused 
a temporary increase in cash balances; this would have incurred a revenue cost – 

the difference between (higher) borrowing costs and (lower) investment returns. 
 
The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances has 

served well over the last few years.  However, this was kept under review to 
avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when this authority may not 

be able to avoid new borrowing to finance capital expenditure and/or the 
refinancing of maturing debt. 
 

Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution was 
adopted with the treasury operations. The Section 151 Officer therefore 

monitored interest rates in financial markets and adopted a pragmatic strategy 
based upon the following principles to manage interest rate risks: 
 

• if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long 
and short term rates, (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around 

relapse into recession or of risks of deflation), then long term borrowings 
would have been postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate 

funding into short term borrowing would have been considered. 
 

Page 110



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

• if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper 
RISE in long and short term rates than initially expected, perhaps arising 

from an acceleration in the start date and in the rate of increase in 
central rates in the USA and UK, an increase in world economic activity 
or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position would 

have been re-appraised.  Most likely, fixed rate funding would have been 
drawn whilst interest rates were lower than they were projected to be in 

the next few years. 
 
Interest rate forecasts expected only gradual rises in medium and longer-term 

fixed borrowing rates during 2021/22 and the two subsequent financial years 
until the turn of the year, when inflation concerns increased significantly.  

Internal, variable, or short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper form of 
borrowing until well in to the second half of 2021/22.  
 

 
Interest rate forecasts in the table below expected only gradual rises in medium 

and longer term fixed borrowing rates during 2021/22 and the two subsequent 
financial years.  Variable, or short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper 

form of borrowing over the period.  
 

 
 

 
 

Link Group Interest Rate View  7.2.22

Mar-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24 Mar-25

BANK RATE 0.75 1.00 1.00 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25

  3 month av. earnings 0.80 1.00 1.00 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20

  6 month av. earnings 1.00 1.10 1.20 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30

12 month av. earnings 1.40 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.70 1.60 1.60 1.50 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40

5 yr   PWLB 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30

10 yr PWLB 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40

25 yr PWLB 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60

50 yr PWLB 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40

0.60%

0.80%

1.00%

1.20%

1.40%

1.60%

1.80%

2.00%

2.20%

2.40%

2.60%

2.80%

3.00%

PWLB Rates 1.4.21 - 31.03.22

1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 50 year target %

Page 111



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

 
PWLB rates are based on gilt (UK Government bonds) yields through 

H.M.Treasury determining a specified margin to add to gilt yields.  The main 
influences on gilt yields are Bank Rate, inflation expectations and movements in 
US treasury yields. Inflation targeting by the major central banks has been 

successful over the last 30 years in lowering inflation and the real equilibrium 
rate for central rates has fallen considerably due to the high level of borrowing by 

consumers: this means that central banks do not need to raise rates as much 
now to have a major impact on consumer spending, inflation, etc. This has pulled 
down the overall level of interest rates and bond yields in financial markets over 

the last 30 years.  We have seen, over the last two years, many bond yields up 
to 10 years in the Eurozone turn negative on expectations that the EU would 

struggle to get growth rates and inflation up from low levels. In addition, there 
has, at times, been an inversion of bond yields in the US whereby 10 year yields 
have fallen below shorter term yields. In the past, this has been a precursor of a 

recession.  Recently, yields have risen since the turn of the year on the back of 
global inflation concerns. 

 
Gilt yields fell sharply from the spring of 2021 through to September and then 

spiked back up before falling again through December.  However, by January 
sentiment had well and truly changed, as markets became focussed on the 
embedded nature of inflation, spurred on by a broader opening of economies post 

the pandemic, and rising commodity and food prices resulting from the Russian 
invasion of Ukraine. 

 
At the close of the day on 31 March 2022, all gilt yields from 1 to 5 years were 
between 1.11% – 1.45% while the 10-year and 25-year yields were at 1.63% 

and 1.84%.   
 

Regarding PWLB borrowing rates, the various margins attributed to their pricing 
are as follows: - 
 

• PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 
• PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80 basis points (G+80bps) 

• PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 
• PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps) 
• Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps) 

 
There is likely to be a further rise in short dated gilt yields and PWLB rates over 

the next three years as Bank Rate is forecast to rise from 0.75% in March 2022 
to 1.25% later this year, with upside risk likely if the economy proves resilient in 
the light of the cost-of-living squeeze.  Medium to long dated yields are driven 

primarily by inflation concerns but the Bank of England is also embarking on a 
process of Quantitative Tightening when Bank Rate hits 1%, whereby the Bank’s 

£895bn stock of gilt and corporate bonds will be sold back into the market over 
several years.  The impact this policy will have on the market pricing of gilts, 
while issuance is markedly increasing, is an unknown at the time of writing.  

 
 

6. Borrowing Outturn 
 

Treasury borrowing – The Council has not undertaken Treasury borrowing 

during the financial year 2021-22. 
 

Page 112



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

Non-Treasury borrowing – In December 2018 & March 2019 the Council 
borrowed £15.449m from the Public Works Loan Board at an average fixed rate 

of 2.475%.  This borrowing is for a period of 50 years and the loans are maturity 
loans meaning the £15.449m principal will be repayable after the 50 year period.  
This borrowing incurred interest charges of £382,388 during 2021/22. 

 
In addition to this borrowing, the Council has a £1m loan from State Street 

Nominees Ltd at a rate of 11.125% which matures in 2061. Interest on this loan 
was therefore £111,250. 
 

Borrowing in Advance of Need - The Council has not borrowed more than, or 
in advance of its needs, purely in order to profit from the investment of the extra 

sums borrowed. 
 
Rescheduling – No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% 

differential between PWLB new borrowing rates and premature repayment rates 
made rescheduling unviable. 

 
7. INVESTMENT OUTTURN FOR 2021/22 

 
Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by DHLUC 
guidance, which was been implemented in the annual investment strategy 

approved by the Council on 1st March 2021.  This policy sets out the approach 
for choosing investment counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided 

by the three main credit rating agencies, supplemented by additional market data 
(such as rating outlooks, credit default swaps, bank share prices etc. 
 

The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, and 
the Council had no liquidity difficulties. 

 
Resources – the Council’s cash balances comprise revenue and capital resources 
and cash flow monies.  The Council’s core cash resources comprised as follows: 

 

Balance Sheet Resources (£’000) 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 

Balances 2,000 2,000 

Earmarked reserves 18,679 16,612 

Usable capital receipts 239 694 

Total 20,918 19,306 

 

The Council held average treasury investment balances of £23.5m which were 
internally managed, achieving an average rate of return of 0.133% compared 
with the average 3 Month Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) rate of 

0.087%.  
 

The Council also held average non-treasury investment balances of £21m at cost 
which were externally managed. These balances were held in property funds and 
achieved estimated net average returns of 3.54%. 

 
The combined rate of return on all investments averaged 1.74%. 

 

Page 113



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

The Council’s 2021/22 original budget for investment income was £820k. At the 
end of the financial year net investment interest earned was £775k which was 

£45k below the profiled budget.  Treasury investments earned £31k and property 
fund investments £744k.  
 

Full details of property fund investments held by the Council and the 2021/22 
performance is shown in Section 9 of this report. 

 
 
8. THE ECONOMY AND INTEREST RATES (Commentary provided by Link 

Group) 
 

UK.  Economy. Over the last two years, the coronavirus outbreak has done huge 
economic damage to the UK and to economies around the world. After the Bank 
of England took emergency action in March 2020 to cut Bank Rate to 0.10%, it 

left Bank Rate unchanged at its subsequent meetings until raising it to 0.25% at 
its meeting on 16th December 2021,  0.50% at its meeting of 4th February 2022 

and then to 0.75% in March 2022.  
 

The UK economy has endured several false dawns through 2021/22, but with 
most of the economy now opened up and nearly back to business-as-usual, the 
GDP numbers have been robust (9% y/y Q1 2022) and sufficient for the MPC to 

focus on tackling the second-round effects of inflation, now that the CPI measure 
has already risen to 6.2% and is likely to exceed 8% in April. 

 
Gilt yields fell towards the back end of 2021, but despite the war in Ukraine gilt 
yields have shot higher in early 2022.  At 1.38%, 2-year yields remain close to 

their recent 11-year high and 10-year yields of 1.65% are close to their recent 
six-year high. These rises have been part of a global trend as central banks have 

suggested they will continue to raise interest rates to contain inflation. 
 
Historically, a further rise in US Treasury yields will probably drag UK gilt yields 

higher.  There is a strong correlation between the two factors.   However, the 
squeeze on real household disposable incomes arising from the 54% leap in April 

utilities prices as well as rises in council tax, water prices and many phone 
contract prices, are strong headwinds for any economy to deal with.  In addition, 
from 1st April 2022, employees also pay 1.25% more in National Insurance tax.  

Consequently, inflation will be a bigger drag on real incomes in 2022 than in any 
year since records began in 1955.  

 
Average inflation targeting. This was the major change in 2020/21 adopted 
by the Bank of England in terms of implementing its inflation target of 2%.   The 

key addition to the Bank’s forward guidance in August 2020 was a new phrase in 
the policy statement, namely that “it does not intend to tighten monetary policy 

until there is clear evidence that significant progress is being made in eliminating 
spare capacity and achieving the 2% target sustainably”.  That mantra now 
seems very dated.  Inflation is the “genie” that has escaped the bottle, and a 

perfect storm of supply side shortages, labour shortages, commodity price 
inflation, the impact of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine and subsequent Western 

sanctions all point to inflation being at elevated levels until well into 2023. 
 
USA. The flurry of comments from Fed officials following the mid-March FOMC 

meeting – including from Chair Jerome Powell himself – hammering home the 
hawkish message from the mid-March meeting, has had markets pricing in a 

Page 114



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

further 225bps of interest rate increases in 2022 on top of the initial move to an 
interest rate range of 0.25% - 0.5%. 

 
EU. With euro-zone inflation having jumped to 7.5% in March it seems 
increasingly likely that the ECB will accelerate its plans to tighten monetary 

policy. It is likely to end net asset purchases in June – i.e., earlier than the Q3 
date which the ECB targeted in March. And the market is now anticipating 

possibly three 25bp rate hikes later this year followed by more in 2023.  
Policymakers have also hinted strongly that they would re-start asset purchases 
if required. In a recent speech, Christine Lagarde said “we can design and deploy 

new instruments to secure monetary policy transmission as we move along the 
path of policy normalisation.”  

 
While inflation has hit the headlines recently, the risk of recession has also been 
rising. Among the bigger countries, Germany is most likely to experience a 

“technical” recession because its GDP contracted in Q4 2021, and its 
performance has been subdued in Q1 2022. However, overall, Q1 2022 growth 

for the Eurozone is expected to be 0.3% q/q with the y/y figure posting a healthy 
5.2% gain.  Finishing on a bright note, unemployment fell to only 6.8% in 

February. 
 
China.  After a concerted effort to get on top of the virus outbreak in Q1 of 

2020, economic recovery was strong in the rest of the year; however, 2021 has 
seen the economy negatively impacted by political policies that have focussed on 

constraining digital services, restricting individual freedoms, and re-establishing 
the power of the One-Party state.  With the recent outbreak of Covid-19 in large 
cities, such as Shanghai, near-term economic performance is likely to be 

subdued. Official GDP numbers suggest growth of c4% y/y, but other data 
measures suggest this may be an overstatement. 

 
Japan. The Japanese economic performance through 2021/22 is best described 
as tepid.  With a succession of local lockdowns throughout the course of the year, 

GDP is expected to have risen only 0.5% y/y with Q4 seeing a minor contraction.  
The policy rate has remained at -0.1%, unemployment is currently only 2.7% 

and inflation is sub 1%, although cost pressures are mounting. 
 
World growth. World growth is estimated to have expanded 8.9% in 2021/22 

following a contraction of 6.6% in 2020/21. 
 

Deglobalisation. Until recent years, world growth has been boosted by 
increasing globalisation i.e. countries specialising in producing goods and 
commodities in which they have an economic advantage and which they then 

trade with the rest of the world. This has boosted worldwide productivity and 
growth, and, by lowering costs, has also depressed inflation. However, the rise of 

China as an economic superpower over the last 30 years, which now accounts for 
18% of total world GDP (the USA accounts for 24%), and Russia’s recent 
invasion of Ukraine, has unbalanced the world economy. In addition, after the 

pandemic exposed how frail extended supply lines were around the world, both 
factors are now likely to lead to a sharp retrenchment of economies into two 

blocs of western democracies v. autocracies. It is, therefore, likely that we are 
heading into a period where there will be a reversal of world globalisation and a 
decoupling of western countries from dependence on China (and to a much lesser 

extent Russia) to supply products and vice versa. This is likely to reduce world 
growth rates. 

Page 115



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

 
Central banks’ monetary policy. During the pandemic, the governments of 

western countries have provided massive fiscal support to their economies which 
has resulted in a big increase in total government debt in each country. It is 
therefore very important that bond yields stay low while debt to GDP ratios 

slowly subside under the impact of economic growth. This provides governments 
with a good reason to amend the mandates given to central banks to allow 

higher average levels of inflation than we have generally seen over the last 
couple of decades. Both the Fed and Bank of England have already changed their 
policy towards implementing their existing mandates on inflation, (and full 

employment), to hitting an average level of inflation. Greater emphasis could 
also be placed on hitting subsidiary targets e.g. full employment before raising 

rates. Higher average rates of inflation would also help to erode the real value of 
government debt more quickly. 
 

9. OTHER ISSUES 
 

IFRS 9 fair value of investments – When producing the 2021/22 financial 
statements the Council has adhered to this accounting standard. This standard 

prescribes the way financial instruments are valued in the accounts and also how 
risk is measured and accounted for as follows: 
 

• The valuation of investments previously valued under the available for sale 
category e.g. equity related to the “commercialism” agenda, property 

funds, equity funds and similar, will be changed to Fair Value through the 
Profit and Loss (FVPL).  
 

• Expected credit loss model. Whilst this should not be material for most 
treasury investments such as bank deposits, this is likely to be problematic 

for some funds e.g. property funds, (and also for non-treasury 
management investments dealt with in the capital strategy e.g. longer 
dated service investments, loans to third parties or loans to subsidiaries). 

 
Following the consultation undertaken by the Ministry of Housing, Communities 

and Local Government (MHCLG) on IFRS9, the Government introduced a 
mandatory statutory override for local authorities to reverse out all unrealised 
fair value movements resulting from pooled investment funds. This will be 

effective from 1 April 2018.  The statutory override applies for five years from 
this date. Local authorities are required to disclose the net impact of the 

unrealised fair value movements in a separate unusable reserve throughout the 
duration of the override in order for the Government to keep the override under 
review and to maintain a form of transparency. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 116



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

Non Treasury Investments : Property Funds – The Council owns 
investments in commercial property funds and a breakdown of the initial 

purchase cost is shown in the following table: 
 
 

Fund Date of 
Purchase 

Net Asset 
Value at Date 
of Purchase 

£ 

Premium/ 
(Discount) on 

Purchase 
£ 

Premium/ 
(Discount) on 

Purchase 
% 

Total Cost 
 
 
£ 

Black Rock UK 
Property Fund  

 

 

05/08/16 
30/12/16 
28/09/18 
TOTAL 

255,085 
255,085 

3,945,592 
4,455,762 

(5,102) 
(5,103) 
54,449 
44,244 

(2.00) 
(2.00) 
1.38 
0.99 

249,983 
249,982 

4,000.041 
4,500,006 

Schroder UK 
Real Estate 
Fund 

05/08/16 
03/09/18 
TOTAL 

250,000 
4,020,006 
4,270,006 

- 
(20,000) 
(20,000) 

 

- 
(0.50) 
(0.47) 

250,000 
4,000,006 
4,250,006 

Threadneedle 
Property Unit 
Trust 

31/08/16 
31/08/18 
28/09/18 
31/10/18 
TOTAL 

263,549 
2,902,441 

483,966 
483,930 

4,133,886 

(13,177) 
86,572 
16,116 
16,357 

105,868 

(5.00) 
2.98 
3.33 
3.38 
2.56 

 

250.372 
2,989,013 

500,082 
500,287 

4,239,754 

M&G 
Investments 
UK Property 
Fund 

 
14/09/18 

 
 

 
3,911,980 

 
88,020 

 
2.25 

 
4,000,000 

 

AEW UK Core 
Property Fund 

 
31/10/18 

 
3,745,319 

 
254,681 

 
6.80 

 
4,000,000 

TOTAL 
 

20,516,953 472,813 2.30 20,989,766 

 
 

Page 117



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

 

The table below provides an analysis of the revenue returns (dividend distributions) received during the financial year and an analysis 
of the change in the Net Asset Values of each fund since purchase and also during the 2021/22 financial year. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Financial 
Institution 

Purchase 
Cost 
(£) 

Estimated 
Revenue 
Received 
2021/22 

(£) 

Projected 
Annualised 
Distribution 

Yield 
2021/22 

Net Asset 
 Value  

(£) 

Total Gain/ 
(Loss) 
Since 

Purchase 
(£) 

Annual 
Gain/ 
(Loss) 

(£) 

2021/22 
Annualised 

Fund Capital 
Gain/(Loss) 
Since 1/4/21 

2021/22 
Estimated 
Combined 

Return 

BlackRock UK 
Property Fund  

4,500,006 135,025 2.95% 
Estimate 

5,191,286 691,280 787,809 14.81% 17.76% 

Schroder UK Real 
Estate Fund  

4,250,006 142,395 3.22% 
Estimate 

4,903,231 653,225 648,380 15.23% 18.45% 

Threadneedle 
Property Unit Trust 

4,239,754 169,123 3.96% 
Estimate 

4,476,361 236,607 646,040 

 

16.87% 20.83% 

M&G Investments 

UK Property Fund 

4,000,000 115,993 2.49% 
Estimate 

3,699,460 (300,540) 221,662 6.37% 8.86% 

AEW UK Core 
Property Fund  

4,000,000 181,001 3.49% 
Estimate 

4,065,606 65,606 539,619 15.30% 18.79% 

TOTAL 20,989,766 743,537  22,335,944 1,346,178 2,843,510   

P
age 118



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

The cumulative unrealised losses on the M&G Investments UK Property Fund of 
£300,540 have been transferred to the Pooled Investment Funds Adjustment 

Account in accordance with statutory override SI2018/1207.  
 
The total unrealised gains on the capital property funds during 2021/22 was 

£1,646,718.  
 

The total cumulative net unrealised gains/losses on the capital property funds 
stands at £1,346,178.  
 

A cumulative minimum revenue provision of £115k has been made in respect of 
the Council’s property fund investments.  

 

The table below provides details of the 2021/22 budget for property fund 
distributions and borrowing costs along with the provisional returns received for 

the year. The final column shows the total distributions since the property funds 
were purchased.  

 

 

It can be seen from the table above that the net revenue distribution received by 
the Council during 2021/22 was £743,537. The cumulative net distribution since 

purchase has now increased to £1,445,717. 

Financial Institution Actual   
Dividend 

Distribution 
Received   

Pre 2021/22           

Dividend 
Distribution 

Budget 
2021/22 

Dividend 
Distribution 

Received 
2021/22 

Total 
Distribution 

Received 
Since 

Purchase 

Schroder UK Real Estate 
Fund 

336,300 159,997 142,395 478,695 

Threadneedle Property Unit 
Trust 

467,273 159,998 169,123 636,396 

BlackRock UK Property Fund 400,232 178,005 135,025 535,257 

M&G Investments UK 
Property Fund  

342,569 120,000 115,993 458,562 

AEW UK Core Property Fund 441,967 144,000 181,001 622,968 

Total Revenue 1,988,341 762,000 743,537 2,731,878 

Borrowing Costs (903,772) (382,389) (382,389) (1,286,161) 

Net Revenue Position 1,084,569 379,611 361,148 1,445,717 

Page 119



APPENDIX ‘A1’ 
   2021/22 Capital Programme and Outturn  

Table 4 – 2021/22 Capital Programme and Q4 Outturn Expenditure 

 Capital Programme 2020/21 Funding of the Capital Programme 

Scheme Approved 

Budget 

2021/22 

£000 

Actual 

2021/22 

£000 

Variance 

(Under)/over  

£000 

External 

Grants  

£000 

Revenue 

Funding 

£000 

Other 

Reserves 

£000 

Capital 

Reserve 

£000 

Capital 

Receipts 

£000 

Total 

 

£000 

Disabled Facilities Grants 949 778 (171) 778     778 

Housing Strategy 56 - (56)      - 

Noise Monitoring Equipment 10 10 -    10  10 

Resurfacing and Footpath Improvements 82 12 (70)    12  12 

Town Centre Heritage Scheme (PSICA 2) 1,397 154 (1,243) 92  62   154 

Multi Use Games Area 23 6 (17) 6     6 

Information Technology Refresh 200 187 (13)   187   187 

ICT Finance Upgrade via PSPS 634 362 (272)    362  362 

Ford Transit Tipper Van 2.0 TDCi x 2 22 - (22)      - 

Refuse Vehicle 170 172 2    172  172 

Ransomes Mower 20 - (20)      - 

Ford Vans x 2 23 - (23)      - 

P
age 120



APPENDIX ‘A1’ 
 

Table 4 – 2021/22 Capital Programme and Q4 Outturn Expenditure 

 Capital Programme 2020/21 Funding of the Capital Programme 

Scheme Approved 

Budget 

2021/22 

£000 

Actual 

2021/22 

£000 

Variance 

(Under)/over  

£000 

External 

Grants  

£000 

Revenue 

Funding 

£000 

Other 

Reserves 

£000 

Capital 

Reserve 

£000 

Capital 

Receipts 

£000 

Total 

 

£000 

Recycling Bin Purchase 24 28 4    28  28 

Total Non-Towns Fund Schemes 3,610 1,709 (1,901) 876 - 249 584 - 1,709 

Boston Town Deal – Accelerated Funding 400 148 (252) 148     148 

Towns Fund – Leisure - 86 86 86     86 

Towns Fund – Mayflower 108 6 (102) 6     6 

Towns Fund – St Botolph’s Library 228 6 (222) 6     6 

Towns Fund – Centre for Food and Fresh 

Produce Logistics 
401 

18 (383) 18     18 

Towns Fund – Blenkin Memorial Hall 808 62 (746) 62     62 

Towns Fund – Healing the High Street 35 6 (29) 6     6 

Towns Fund – Boston Station 3 6 3 6     6 

Total Towns Fund Schemes 1,983 338 (1,645) 338 - - - - 338 

Total 5,593 2,047 (3,546) 1,214 - 249 584 - 2,047 

 

P
age 121



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

A&G Work Programme 2022/23 

18th July  • Q4 Risk Report 2021/22 
(Suzanne Rolfe, Insight & Transformation Manager)  

• Internal Audits Annual Report 
(Matthew Waller, Internal Audit Manager)  

• Auditor’s Annual Report  
(Mark Surridge, Director – Public Services, Mazars) 

• Audit Strategy Memorandum 
(Mark Surridge, Director – Public Services, Mazars) 

• Annual Treasury Report  
(Sean Howsman – Interim Treasury Manager)  

19th September 
 

• Q1 Risk Report 2022/23 

     (Suzanne Rolfe, Insight & Transformation Manager) 

• Unaudited Financial Statements 2021/22  
(Ellie Stacey, Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate) PSPS)  

•  Update in terms of RIPA 2000 

(Alison Sparks, Deputy Monitoring Officer)  

• Combined Assurance 
(John Medler, Monitoring Officer) 

• Internal Audit Progress Report 
(Matthew Waller, Internal Audit Manager)  

• Q1 Treasury Report  
(Interim Treasury Manager)  

• External Auditors Progress Report  
(Mark Surridge, Director – Public Services, Mazars)  

• Monitoring Officer Update (verbal) 
(John Medler, Monitoring Officer)   

• Towns Fund Summary  
(Adrian Sibley, Deputy Chief Executive (Programme Delivery)  

7th November  
 

• Treasury Management mid-year Report  
(Interim Treasury Manager)  

P
age 123

A
genda Item

 6



 

 

• Audit Completion Report – (provisional – may go in January)  
(Mark Surridge, Director – Public Services, Mazars)   

• Auditors Annual Report  
(Mark Surridge, Director – Public Services, Mazars)   

• Monitoring Officer Update (verbal) 
(John Medler, Monitoring Officer)   

2023 

30th January  
  

• Q2 Risk Report 2022/23 
(Suzanne Rolfe, Insight & Transformation Manager) 

• Audited Financial Statements 2021/22 – (provisional – may go in November)  
(Ellie Stacey – Deputy Head of Financial Services, PSPS)  

• Treasury Management Strategy Statement/ MRP & Annual Investment Strategy 
(Interim Treasury Manager)  

• Internal Audit Progress Report  
(Matthew Waller, Internal Audit Manager)  

• Monitoring Officer Update (verbal) 

• (John Medler, Monitoring Officer)   

20th March  • Q3 Risk Report 2022/23 
(Suzanne Rolfe, Insight & Transformation Manager) 

• Q3 Treasury Report  
(Interim Treasury Manager  

• Draft Internal Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 
(Matthew Waller, Internal Audit Manager)  

• Audit Strategy Memorandum 2022/23 
(Mark Surridge, Director – Public Services, Mazars)  

• Financial Statements – Accounting Policies 
(Ellie Stacey – Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate) PSPS)  

• Combined Assurance Report (Internal Audit)  
(Matt Waller/John Medler)  

23rd May   

P
age 124



Audit and Governance Committee – Future Training  

Future Topics Plans for Delivery How and When 
 

Pensions Fund Training 
 

Claire Machej Member Briefing 

Finance Section 151 Officer Member Briefing 

Statement of Accounts Section 151 Officer Detailed session 

Audit Section 151 Officer Detailed session 

Treasury Management Section 151 Officer Fund Managers 

Governance  Monitoring Officer Detailed session  

Ethics Monitoring Officer Member Briefing 

Standards Monitoring Officer Member Briefing 

Risk Management Monitoring Officer Member Briefing 

Cyber Security Monitoring Officer/ Alex 
Tuplin, Information Security 
Analyst, PSPS Limited 

Member Briefing 

 

P
age 125



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	1 Risk Management Report
	Appendix A BBC strategic risk register

	2 Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/22
	3 Auditor's Annual Report
	Slide Number 1
	Contents
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19

	4 Audit Strategy Memorandum
	Slide Number 1
	Contents
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Slide Number 29
	Slide Number 30
	Slide Number 31
	Slide Number 32
	Slide Number 33

	5 Treasury Management
	Appendix A - BBC Annual Treasury Management Review 2021-22

	6 WORK PROGRAMME
	Training Programme


